

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Fifty-ninth Legislative Assembly

* * * * *

Bismarck, April 21, 2005

The House convened at 8:00 a.m., with Speaker Klein presiding.

The prayer was offered by Pastor Trinity Opp, Bismarck Baptist Church.

The roll was called and all members were present except Representatives Charging, Kaldor, and Zaiser.

A quorum was declared by the Speaker.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

SB 2050: Your conference committee (Sens. Cook, Urlacher, Every and Reps. Drovdal, Weiler, Conrad) recommends that the **HOUSE RECEDE** from the House amendments on SJ page 828 and place SB 2050 on the Seventh order.

SB 2050 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. DROVDAL MOVED that the conference committee report on SB 2050 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

SB 2050, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order.

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

SB 2050: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 3 of chapter 538 of the 2003 Session Laws and section 26 of chapter 539 of the 2003 Session Laws, relating to the implementation date for streamlined sales and use tax agreement compliance; and to provide an effective date.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 73 YEAS, 16 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brandenburg; Carlisle; Conrad; Damschen; DeKrey; Delmore; Devlin; Dietrich; Dosch; Drovdal; Ekstrom; Froelich; Froseth; Galvin; Glassheim; Grande; Gulleson; Haas; Hanson; Hawken; Headland; Herbel; Horter; Hunsakor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kerzman; Kingsbury; Klemin; Kreidt; Kroeber; Maragos; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Monson; Mueller; Nicholas; Norland; Nottestad; Onstad; Owens; Pietsch; Porter; Potter; Price; Sandvig; Schmidt; Skarphol; Solberg; Svedjan; Thorpe; Timm; Uglem; Vigesaa; Wall; Weiler; Wieland; Williams; Speaker Klein

NAYS: Bellew; Carlson; Clark; Delzer; Iverson; Koppelman; Kretschmar; Meyer, S.; Nelson; Pollert; Rennerfeldt; Ruby; Sitte; Thoreson; Weisz; Wrangham

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Brusegaard; Charging; Kaldor; Wald; Zaiser

SB 2050 passed and the title was agreed to.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

SB 2359: Your conference committee (Sens. Cook, Urlacher, Every and Reps. Drovdal, Weiler, Conrad) recommends that the **HOUSE RECEDE** from the House amendments on SJ page 829, adopt amendments as follows, and place SB 2359 on the Seventh order:

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on page 829 of the Senate Journal and page 977 of the House Journal and that Senate Bill No. 2359 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 3, after "a" insert "remote seller or"

Page 1, line 4, after "agreements" insert "; and to provide an effective date"

Page 1, line 21, after the period insert "A retailer that is a remote seller that, through a certified service provider or by other means, pays the tax due within the time limitations under section 57-39.2-12 or chapter 57-39.4 on taxable sales made before July 1, 2007, may deduct and retain one and one-half percent of the tax due or such lower percentage as agreed in the compensation or monetary allowance agreement as approved by the streamlined sales and use tax governing board. The limitation of subsection 2 does not apply to the amount a retailer who is a remote seller is allowed to deduct and retain under this subsection. For purposes of this subsection, "remote seller" means a retailer that does not have an adequate physical presence to establish nexus in this state for sales tax purposes."

Page 2, line 3, after the period insert "A retailer that is a remote seller that, through a certified service provider or by other means, pays the tax due within the time limitations under section 57-39.2-12 or chapter 57-39.4 on taxable sales made before July 1, 2007, may deduct and retain one and one-half percent of the tax due or such lower percentage as agreed in the compensation or monetary allowance agreement as approved by the streamlined sales and use tax governing board. The limitation of subsection 2 does not apply to the amount a retailer who is a remote seller is allowed to deduct and retain under this subsection. For purposes of this subsection, "remote seller" means a retailer that does not have an adequate physical presence to establish nexus in this state for sales tax purposes."

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act is effective for taxable years occurring after September 30, 2005."

Renumber accordingly

SB 2359 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. DROVDAL MOVED that the conference committee report on SB 2359 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

SB 2359, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order.

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

SB 2359: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 2 of section 57-39.2-11, subsection 1 of section 57-39.2-12.1, and subsection 1 of section 57-40.2-07.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to compensation of a certified service provider under streamlined sales tax collection agreements; and to provide an effective date.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 77 YEAS, 14 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Amerman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brandenburg; Brusegaard; Carlisle; Conrad; Damschen; DeKrey; Delmore; Devlin; Dietrich; Dosch; Drovdal; Ekstrom; Froelich; Froseth; Galvin; Glassheim; Grande; Guleson; Haas; Hanson; Hawken; Headland; Herbel; Horter; Hunskor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kerzman; Kingsbury; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Maragos; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Monson; Mueller; Nicholas; Norland; Nottestad; Onstad; Owens; Pietsch; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Price; Sandvig; Schmidt; Skarphol; Solberg; Svedjan; Thorpe; Timm; Uglem; Vigasaa; Wald; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Speaker Klein

NAYS: Aarsvold; Bellew; Carlson; Clark; Delzer; Iverson; Martinson; Meyer, S.; Nelson; Rennerfeldt; Ruby; Sitte; Thoreson; Wrangham

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Charging; Kaldor; Zaiser

SB 2359 passed and the title was agreed to.

MOTION

REP. BERG MOVED that HB 1004, HB 1397, SB 2002, SB 2004, SB 2007, SB 2019, and SB 2157 be placed at the bottom of the calendar, which motion prevailed.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

HB 1002, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Thane, Holmberg, Mathern and Reps. Thoreson, Carlisle, Kroeber) recommends that the **SENATE RECEDE** from the Senate amendments on HJ pages 1381-1382, adopt amendments as follows, and place HB 1002 on the Seventh order:

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1381 and 1382 of the House Journal and pages 1037 and 1038 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1002 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 2, after the semicolon insert "to provide an exemption;"

Page 1, line 3, replace "section" with "sections" and after "54-09-05" insert "and 54-09-08"

Page 1, line 4, after "state" insert "and the secretary of state's general services operating fund"

Page 2, line 7, replace "133,738" with "130,493"

Page 2, line 10, replace "79,853" with "79,728"

Page 2, line 11, replace "279,063" with "275,693"

Page 2, line 12, replace "63,378" with "63,253"

Page 2, line 13, replace "215,685" with "212,440"

Page 2, line 18, replace "206,685" with "203,440"

Page 2, line 19, replace "63,378" with "63,253"

Page 2, line 20, replace "270,063" with "266,693"

Page 2, line 29, replace "2,287,356" with "2,284,111"

Page 3, line 2, replace "9,579,853" with "9,579,728"

Page 3, line 3, replace "13,966,270" with "13,962,900"

Page 3, line 4, replace "9,943,741" with "9,943,616"

Page 3, line 5, replace "4,022,529" with "4,019,284"

Page 3, line 10, replace "4,349,529" with "4,346,284"

Page 3, line 11, replace "9,943,741" with "9,943,616"

Page 3, line 12, replace "14,293,270" with "14,289,900"

Page 3, line 14, after "counties" insert "or make available \$76,100 from other sources, including savings from other areas within the secretary of state's budget"

Page 3, line 16, after "collected" insert "or made available"

Page 3, line 17, after "fund" insert "or if made available from general fund budget savings of the secretary of state, be returned to the general fund as unspent general fund appropriation authority for the 2005-07 biennium"

Page 3, after line 17, insert:

"SECTION 5. EXEMPTION. The appropriation contained in subdivision 1 of section 1 of chapter 2 of the 2001 Session Laws is not subject to the provisions of section 54-44.1-11 for an amount of up to \$105,000, and this amount may be used as state matching funds for federal election reform funding available to the state, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2005, and ending June 30, 2007."

Page 3, after line 23, insert:

"SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Section 54-09-08 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

54-09-08. Secretary of state's general services operating fund. The secretary of state's general services operating fund is a special fund in the state treasury. Moneys in the fund are to be used pursuant to legislative appropriations for the provision of services under section 16.1-02-15, subsection 6 of section 41-09-94, subsection 9 of section 54-09-04, and sections 54-09-10 and 54-09-11. At the close of each ~~fiscal year~~biennium, the secretary of state shall transfer any unobligated balance remaining in the fund exceeding seventy-five thousand dollars to the general fund."

Page 3, line 24, after "3" insert "and section 5"

Page 3, line 25, replace "is" with "are"

Renumber accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

House Bill No. 1002 - Summary of Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	HOUSE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	SENATE VERSION	COMPARISON TO SENATE
Secretary of State						
Total all funds	\$14,521,822	\$13,966,270	(\$3,370)	\$13,962,900	\$13,962,900	\$0
Less estimated income	<u>10,316,535</u>	<u>9,943,741</u>	(125)	<u>9,943,616</u>	<u>9,943,616</u>	
General fund	\$4,205,287	\$4,022,529	(\$3,245)	\$4,019,284	\$4,019,284	\$0
Public Printing						
Total all funds	\$327,000	\$327,000	\$0	\$327,000	\$327,000	\$0
Less estimated income						
General fund	<u>\$327,000</u>	<u>\$327,000</u>	<u>\$0</u>	<u>\$327,000</u>	<u>\$327,000</u>	<u>\$0</u>
Bill Total						
Total all funds	\$14,848,822	\$14,293,270	(\$3,370)	\$14,289,900	\$14,289,900	\$0
Less estimated income	<u>10,316,535</u>	<u>9,943,741</u>	(125)	<u>9,943,616</u>	<u>9,943,616</u>	
General fund	\$4,532,287	\$4,349,529	(\$3,245)	\$4,346,284	\$4,346,284	\$0

House Bill No. 1002 - Secretary of State - Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	HOUSE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	SENATE VERSION	COMPARISON TO SENATE
Salaries and wages	\$2,296,214	\$2,287,356	(\$3,245)	\$2,284,111	\$2,284,111	
Operating expenses	2,326,061	2,076,061		2,076,061	\$2,076,061	
Capital assets	15,000	15,000		15,000	15,000	
Petition review	8,000	8,000		8,000	8,000	
Election reform	<u>9,876,547</u>	<u>9,579,853</u>	(125)	<u>9,579,728</u>	<u>9,579,728</u>	
Total all funds	\$14,521,822	\$13,966,270	(\$3,370)	\$13,962,900	\$13,962,900	\$0
Less estimated income	<u>10,316,535</u>	<u>9,943,741</u>	(125)	<u>9,943,616</u>	<u>9,943,616</u>	
General fund	\$4,205,287	\$4,022,529	(\$3,245)	\$4,019,284	\$4,019,284	\$0
FTE	27.00	27.00	0.00	27.00	27.00	0.00

Dept. 108 - Secretary of State - Detail of Conference Committee Changes

	REDUCES RECOMMENDED FUNDING FOR HEALTH INSURANCE	TOTAL CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES
Salaries and wages	(\$3,245)	(\$3,245)
Operating expenses		
Capital assets		
Petition review		
Election reform	(125)	(125)
Total all funds	(\$3,370)	(\$3,370)
Less estimated income	(125)	(125)
General fund	(\$3,245)	(\$3,245)
FTE	0.00	0.00

A section is added as an emergency authorizing the Secretary of State to continue, for the 2005-07 biennium, any unspent appropriation authority remaining from the agency's authorized carryover from the 2001-03 biennium of up to \$105,000 for providing state matching funds for federal election reform funding. This section was also included in the Senate version.

A section is added amending Section 54-09-08 requiring the Secretary of State to transfer any amounts in the Secretary of State's general services operating fund exceeding \$75,000 at the end of a biennium to the general fund rather than at the end of each fiscal year. This section was also included in the Senate version.

The section added by the House requiring the Secretary of State to collect \$76,100 from counties to reimburse the general fund for the \$76,100 appropriated for matching federal election reform funding is changed to allow the Secretary of State to either collect the funds from the counties or to make available the funding from other sources which may include savings from within the Secretary of State's budget.

Engrossed HB 1002 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. THORESON MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed HB 1002 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed HB 1002, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1002: A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the office of the secretary of state and public printing; to provide an exemption; to define matching requirements for the Help America Vote Act; to amend and reenact sections 54-09-05 and 54-09-08 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the salary of the secretary of state and the secretary of state's general services operating fund; and to declare an emergency.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 89 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Bellew; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brusegaard; Carlisle; Carlson; Charging; Clark; Conrad; Damschen; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; Devlin; Dietrich; Dosch; Drovda; Ekstrom; Froelich; Froseth; Galvin; Glassheim; Grande; Haas; Hanson; Hawken; Headland; Herbel; Horter; Hunsakor; Iverson; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kerzman; Kingsbury; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Maragos; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Monson; Mueller; Nelson; Nicholas; Norland; Nottestad; Onstad; Pietsch; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Price; Rennerfeldt; Ruby; Sandvig; Schmidt; Sitte; Skarphol; Solberg; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Timm; Uglem; Vigasaa; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Wrangham; Speaker Klein

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Brandenburg; Gulleeson; Owens; Wald; Zaiser

Engrossed HB 1002 passed, the title was agreed to, and the emergency clause was declared carried.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

HB 1003, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Kringstad, Holmberg, Mathern and Reps. Carlisle, Thoreson, Williams) recommends that the **SENATE RECEDE** from the Senate amendments on HJ pages 1499-1502, adopt amendments as follows, and place HB 1003 on the Seventh order:

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1499-1502 of the House Journal and pages 1186-1189 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1003 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 2, after the first semicolon insert "to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the racing commission;"

Page 1, line 3, after the second semicolon insert "to provide for a salary equity review and recommendation;" and after "amend" insert "and reenact subsection 1 of section 53-06.2-02 and"

Page 1, line 4, after the second "the" insert "membership of the racing commission and the"

Page 2, line 1, replace "860,869" with "926,395"

Page 2, line 2, replace "283,953" with "488,324"

Page 2, line 3, replace "(63,000)" with "(44,200)"

Page 2, remove line 5

Page 2, line 7, replace "1,501,643" with "1,422,945"

Page 2, line 8, replace "(78,717)" with "(515,729)"

Page 2, line 9, replace "1,580,360" with "1,938,674"

Page 2, line 15, replace "19,322,170" with "19,387,696"

Page 2, line 16, replace "8,279,424" with "8,483,795"

Page 2, line 17, replace "1,767,250" with "1,786,050"

Page 2, remove line 21

Page 2, line 24, replace "35,985,334" with "35,906,636"

Page 2, line 25, replace "17,350,757" with "16,913,745"

Page 2, line 26, replace "18,634,577" with "18,992,891"

Page 2, after line 26, insert:

"SECTION 4. APPROPRIATION - RACING COMMISSION. The funds provided in this section, or so much of the funds as may be necessary, are appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, to the racing commission for the purpose of defraying the expenses of the racing commission, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2005, and ending June 30, 2007, as follows:

Racing commission	\$367,145
Total all funds	\$367,145
Less estimated income	<u>249,666</u>
Total general fund appropriation	\$117,479"

Page 3, line 18, replace "3" with "4", replace the first "\$73,945" with "\$73,889", and replace the second "\$73,945" with "\$73,889"

Page 3, line 19, replace "\$73,946" with "\$73,888"

Page 4, line 6, replace "2005" with "2007"

Page 4, line 8, remove "- **COLLABORATION**"

Page 4, line 9, remove "**WITH UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE**" and replace "collaborate" with "consider, in consultation"

Page 4, line 10, replace "to determine whether" with ", the feasibility of naming"

Page 4, line 11, remove "should be named"

Page 4, after line 13, insert:

"SECTION 14. SALARY REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION. During the 2005-06 interim, the director of the office of management and budget shall conduct an equity review of the salaries of all attorneys and paralegals employed as full-time

employees with all branches of government within the state of North Dakota, including attorneys and paralegals employed by the state board of higher education and workforce safety and insurance. The director shall provide to the governor for inclusion in the 2007-09 biennial executive budget recommendation the funding necessary to adjust the salaries of attorneys and paralegals in a manner that makes attorney and paralegal salaries comparable and equitable throughout state government. In determining comparable positions based upon years of experience and importance of position, the director shall consult with the attorney general.

SECTION 15. AMENDMENT. Subsection 1 of section 53-06.2-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

1. A North Dakota racing commission is established in the office of the attorney general. The commission is subject to the supervision and direction of the attorney general, except with regard to the commission's authority to spend the funds described in subsection 6 of section 53-06.2-11. The attorney general may require payment for any services rendered to the racing commission. Payment for such services must be deposited into the attorney general's operating fund. The commission consists of the chairman and four other members appointed by the governor. Of the members appointed by the governor, one must be appointed from a list of four nominees, one of whom is nominated by the state chapter or affiliate of the American quarter horse racing association, one of whom is nominated by the state chapter or affiliate of the United States trotting association, one of whom is nominated by the state chapter or affiliate of the international Arabian horse association, and one of whom is nominated by the state chapter or affiliate of the North Dakota thoroughbred association. The members serve five-year terms and until a successor is appointed and qualified. A member appointed to fill a vacancy arising from other than the natural expiration of a term serves only for the unexpired portion of the term and may be reappointed. The terms of the commissioners must be staggered so that one term expires each July first. At the expiration of the five-year term of each incumbent member of the commission, the governor shall appoint a new member to the commission."

Page 4, line 20, replace "10" with "11"

Renumber accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

House Bill No. 1003 - Summary of Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	HOUSE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	SENATE VERSION	COMPARISON TO SENATE
Attorney General						
Total all funds	\$36,058,177	\$35,985,334	(\$78,698)	\$35,906,636	\$35,906,636	\$0
Less estimated income	17,788,541	17,350,757	(437,012)	16,913,745	16,783,853	129,892
General fund	\$18,269,636	\$18,634,577	\$358,314	\$18,992,891	\$19,122,783	(\$129,892)
Racing Commission						
Total all funds	\$0	\$0	\$367,145	\$367,145	\$367,145	\$0
Less estimated income			249,666	249,666	249,666	
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$117,479	\$117,479	\$117,479	\$0
Bill Total						
Total all funds	\$36,058,177	\$35,985,334	\$288,447	\$36,273,781	\$36,273,781	\$0
Less estimated income	17,788,541	17,350,757	(187,346)	17,163,411	17,033,519	129,892
General fund	\$18,269,636	\$18,634,577	\$475,793	\$19,110,370	\$19,240,262	(\$129,892)

House Bill No. 1003 - Attorney General - Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	HOUSE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	SENATE VERSION	COMPARISON TO SENATE
Salaries and wages	\$19,400,721	\$19,322,170	\$65,526	\$19,387,696	\$19,387,696	
Operating expenses	8,254,104	8,279,424	204,371	8,483,795	8,483,795	
Capital assets	1,767,250	1,767,250	18,800	1,786,050	1,786,050	
Grants	5,944,056	5,944,056		5,944,056	5,944,056	
Litigation fees	50,000	50,000		50,000	50,000	
State school finance lawsuit	240,000	240,000		240,000	240,000	
Racing Commission	387,007	367,395	(367,395)			
Arrest and return of fugitives	10,000	10,000		10,000	10,000	
Gaming Commission	5,039	5,039		5,039	5,039	
Total all funds	\$36,058,177	\$35,985,334	(\$78,698)	\$35,906,636	\$35,906,636	\$0

Less estimated income	<u>17,788,541</u>	<u>17,350,757</u>	<u>(437,012)</u>	<u>16,913,745</u>	<u>16,783,853</u>	<u>129,892</u>
General fund	\$18,269,636	\$18,634,577	\$358,314	\$18,992,891	\$19,122,783	(\$129,892)
FTE	177.00	175.00	(0.70)	174.30	174.30	0.00

Dept. 125 - Attorney General - Detail of Conference Committee Changes

	REDUCES RECOMMENDED FUNDING FOR HEALTH INSURANCE	CHANGES FUNDING SOURCE FOR ATTORNEY SALARIES ¹	ADDS FUNDING FOR CRIME LAB FORENSIC SUPPLIES ²	ADDS FUNDING FOR CRIME LAB SERVICE AGREEMENTS ³	ADDS FUNDING FOR CONNECTND FEES ⁴	ADDS FUNDING FOR DNA TESTING FOR FELONS ⁵
Salaries and wages	(\$21,465)					\$86,991
Operating expenses			\$70,853	\$74,552	\$31,078	27,888
Capital assets						18,800
Grants						
Litigation fees						
State school finance lawsuit						
Racing Commission	(250)					
Arrest and return of fugitives						
Gaming Commission						
Total all funds	(\$21,715)	\$0	\$70,853	\$74,552	\$31,078	\$133,679
Less estimated income	<u>(5,400)</u>	<u>(241,024)</u>			<u>31,078</u>	
General fund	(\$16,315)	\$241,024	\$70,853	\$74,552	\$0	\$133,679
FTE	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	1.30
	REMOVES RACING COMMISSION FUNDING ⁶	TOTAL CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES				
Salaries and wages		\$65,526				
Operating expenses		204,371				
Capital assets		18,800				
Grants						
Litigation fees						
State school finance lawsuit						
Racing Commission	(\$367,145)	(367,395)				
Arrest and return of fugitives						
Gaming Commission						
Total all funds	(\$367,145)	(\$78,698)				
Less estimated income	<u>(221,666)</u>	<u>(437,012)</u>				
General fund	(\$145,479)	\$358,314				
FTE	(2.00)	(0.70)				

¹ The funding source for continuing the cost of salary equity increases for attorneys authorized by the 2003 Legislative Assembly from special funds for the 2003-05 biennium is changed to the general fund for the 2005-07 biennium, the same as the Senate version.

² Funding is added for additional forensic supplies for the crime lab, the same as the Senate version.

³ Funding is added for service agreements on crime lab equipment, the same as the Senate version.

⁴ Funding is added from special funds for 2005-07 ConnectND fees, the same as the Senate version.

⁵ Funding of \$133,679 from the general fund, including 1 FTE administrative assistant and a .3 FTE forensic scientist, is added for costs associated with collecting and processing DNA samples from all convicted felons in accordance with provisions of House Bill No. 1235. The Senate also added this funding.

⁶ Funding for the Racing Commission is removed and provided in a separate appropriation section in accordance with provisions of Senate Bill No. 2340 which removes the Racing Commission from the Attorney General's office. The Senate also made this change.

The section added by the House requiring the Attorney General to collaborate with the federal prosecutors to determine whether North Dakota should be named as a plaintiff in Medicare and Medicaid fraud cases being considered by the federal government is changed to require the Attorney General to consider, in consultation with federal prosecutors, the feasibility of naming North Dakota as a plaintiff in these cases. The Senate also made this change.

A section is added requiring the Office of Management and Budget to conduct a salary equity review of attorneys and paralegals employed by state government and to include a recommendation in the 2007-09 executive budget to provide for comparable and equitable salaries for these employees, the same as the Senate version.

The conference committee added a section allowing a Racing Commission member, appointed to fill a vacancy on the commission, to be reappointed to the commission.

The conference committee removed the following items which were included in the Senate version:

- The Senate added \$100,000 from the general fund and reduced special funds by \$100,000 for crime lab testing supplies.
- The Senate added \$29,892 from the general fund and reduced other funds by \$29,892 to replace a portion of the anticipated reduction in federal funds available for drug enforcement activities of the Bureau of Criminal Investigation and the crime lab.

House Bill No. 1003 - Racing Commission - Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	HOUSE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	SENATE VERSION	COMPARISON TO SENATE
Racing Commission			<u>\$367,145</u>	<u>\$367,145</u>	<u>\$367,145</u>	
Total all funds	\$0	\$0	\$367,145	\$367,145	\$367,145	\$0
Less estimated income			<u>249,666</u>	<u>249,666</u>	<u>249,666</u>	
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$117,479	\$117,479	\$117,479	\$0
FTE	0.00	0.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	0.00

Dept. 130 - Racing Commission - Detail of Conference Committee Changes

	ADDS SEPARATE APPROPRIATION FOR RACING ¹	CHANGES FUNDING SOURCE ²	TOTAL CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES
Racing Commission	<u>\$367,145</u>		<u>\$367,145</u>
Total all funds	\$367,145	\$0	\$367,145
Less estimated income	<u>221,666</u>	<u>28,000</u>	<u>249,666</u>
General fund	\$145,479	(\$28,000)	\$117,479
FTE	2.00	0.00	2.00

¹ A section is added providing an appropriation for the Racing Commission in accordance with provisions of Senate Bill No. 2340 which removes the Racing Commission from the Attorney General's office. The Senate also made this change.

² A funding source change from the general fund to special funds is made to allow expenditure of license fee collections that will be deposited in the Racing Commission operating fund rather than the general fund in accordance with provisions of Senate Bill No. 2344. The Senate also made this change.

Engrossed HB 1003 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. CARLISLE MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed HB 1003 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed HB 1003, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1003: A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the attorney general; to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the racing commission; to provide an exemption; to provide for racing commission expenses; to provide a statement of legislative intent; to provide for duties of the attorney general; to provide for a salary equity review and recommendation; to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 53-06.2-02 and section 54-12-11 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the membership of the racing commission and the salary of the attorney general; and to declare an emergency.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 87 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brusegaard; Carlisle; Carlson; Charging; Clark; Conrad; Damschen; DeKrey; Delmore; Devlin; Dietrich; Dosch; Drovda; Ekstrom; Froelich; Froseth; Galvin; Glassheim; Grande; Gullekson; Haas; Hanson; Hawken; Headland; Herbel; Horter; Hunsakor; Iverson; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kerzman; Kingsbury; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Maragos; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Monson; Mueller; Nelson; Nicholas; Norland; Nottestad; Onstad; Pietsch; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Price; Rennerfeldt; Sandvig;

Schmidt; Sitte; Skarphol; Solberg; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Timm; Uglem; Vigesaa; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Wrangham; Speaker Klein

NAYS: Bellew; Delzer; Ruby

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Brandenburg; Owens; Wald; Zaiser

Engrossed HB 1003 passed, the title was agreed to, and the emergency clause was declared carried.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

HB 1004, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Kilzer, Schobinger, Krauter and Reps. Skarphol, Monson, Glassheim) recommends that the **HOUSE ACCEDE** to the Senate amendments on HJ page 1387 and place HB 1004 on the Seventh order.

Engrossed HB 1004 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. SKARPHOL MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed HB 1004 as printed on HJ page 1387 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed HB 1004, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1004: A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state auditor; and to amend and reenact section 54-10-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the salary of the state auditor.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 89 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Bellew; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brusegaard; Carlisle; Carlson; Charging; Clark; Conrad; Damschen; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; Devlin; Dietrich; Dosch; Drovdal; Ekstrom; Froelich; Froseth; Galvin; Glassheim; Grande; Gulleston; Haas; Hanson; Hawken; Headland; Herbel; Horter; Hunsakor; Iverson; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kerzman; Kingsbury; Klemm; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Maragos; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Monson; Mueller; Nelson; Nicholas; Norland; Nottestad; Onstad; Pietsch; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Price; Rennerfeldt; Ruby; Sandvig; Schmidt; Sitte; Skarphol; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Timm; Uglem; Vigesaa; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Wrangham; Speaker Klein

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Brandenburg; Owens; Solberg; Wald; Zaiser

Engrossed HB 1004 passed and the title was agreed to.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

HB 1008, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Schobinger, Christmann, Mathern and Reps. Kempenich, Thoreson, Kroeber) recommends that the **SENATE RECEDE** from the Senate amendments on HJ pages 1467-1468, adopt amendments as follows, and place HB 1008 on the Seventh order:

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1467 and 1468 of the House Journal and pages 1162 and 1163 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1008 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 4, after "study" insert "; to provide an exemption to section 54-44.1-11 relating to unexpended appropriations" and remove "a statement of"

Page 1, line 23, replace "312,608" with "307,491"

Page 2, line 1, replace "23,500" with "53,500"

Page 2, line 3, replace "950,000" with "695,000"

Page 2, line 4, replace "1,442,000" with "1,211,883"

Page 2, line 5, replace "1,105,516" with "848,753"

Page 2, line 6, replace "336,484" with "363,130"

Page 2, line 12, replace "5,084,105" with "5,078,988"

Page 2, line 14, replace "58,511" with "88,511"

Page 2, line 17, replace "1,200,000" with "945,000"

Page 2, line 18, replace "11,426,261" with "11,196,144"

Page 2, line 19, replace "7,178,283" with "6,921,520"

Page 2, line 20, replace "4,247,978" with "4,274,624"

Page 2, line 22, replace "\$1,200,000" with "\$945,000"

Page 2, line 23, after the comma insert "consisting of \$800,000" and after "fund" insert ", \$20,000 of carryover authority from the state rail fund, and \$125,000 from other sources, including the shipper participating in the case,"

Page 2, line 24, after the period insert "The commission must have written commitments for \$125,000 from other sources, including the shipper participating in the case, before spending any moneys from the beginning farmer revolving loan fund."

Page 3, replace lines 3 through 8 with:

"SECTION 6. EXEMPTION. The amount appropriated for the rail rate complaint case, as contained in section 1 of chapter 29 of the 2003 Session Laws, is not subject to the provision of section 54-44.1-11. Any unexpended funds from the rail rate complaint case line item are available for continued use for expenditures relating to the rail rate complaint case.

SECTION 7. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STUDY - PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES. The legislative council shall consider studying, during the 2005-06 interim, the changes in responsibilities and duties of the public service commission since its inception. The study should include an evaluation of what additional duties have been given to the commission and those duties no longer performed. The legislative council shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixtieth legislative assembly."

Page 3, after line 16, insert:

"SECTION 10. COMMISSION HEARING ROOM - LEGISLATIVE INTENT. It is the intent of the legislative assembly that the public service commission hearing room be available for use by other state agencies and by the legislative assembly during the regular session when not being used for commission business."

ReNUMBER accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

House Bill No. 1008 - Public Service Commission - Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	HOUSE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	SENATE VERSION	COMPARISON TO SENATE
Salaries and wages	\$5,099,584	\$5,084,105	(\$5,117)	\$5,078,988	\$5,078,988	
Operating expenses	1,408,153	1,408,153		1,408,153	1,408,153	
Capital assets	58,511	58,511	30,000	88,511	88,511	
Grants	7,000	7,000		7,000	7,000	
Abandoned mined lands contractual services	3,668,492	3,668,492		3,668,492	3,668,492	
Rail rate complaint case	<u>900,000</u>	<u>1,200,000</u>	<u>(255,000)</u>	<u>945,000</u>	<u>970,000</u>	<u>(\$25,000)</u>
Total all funds	\$11,141,740	\$11,426,261	(\$230,117)	\$11,196,144	\$11,221,144	(\$25,000)
Less estimated income	<u>5,985,139</u>	<u>7,178,283</u>	<u>(256,763)</u>	<u>6,921,520</u>	<u>6,946,520</u>	<u>(25,000)</u>

General fund	\$5,156,601	\$4,247,978	\$26,646	\$4,274,624	\$4,274,624	\$0
FTE	41.00	41.00	0.00	41.00	41.00	0.00

Dept. 408 - Public Service Commission - Detail of Conference Committee Changes

	REDUCES RECOMMENDED FUNDING FOR HEALTH INSURANCE ¹	REDUCES RAIL CASE FUNDING ²	ADDS FUNDING FOR SOUND SYSTEM ³	TOTAL CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES
Salaries and wages	(\$5,117)			(\$5,117)
Operating expenses				
Capital assets			\$30,000	30,000
Grants				
Abandoned mined lands				
contractual services				
Rail rate complaint case		(\$255,000)		(255,000)
Total all funds	(\$5,117)	(\$255,000)	\$30,000	(\$230,117)
Less estimated income	(1,763)	(255,000)		(256,763)
General fund	(\$3,354)	\$0	\$30,000	\$26,646
FTE	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

¹ This amendment reduces funding for state employee health insurance premiums from \$559.15 to \$553.95 per month.

² The conference committee reduced the funding for the rail rate complaint case to \$945,000, of which \$800,000 is from the beginning farmer revolving loan fund; \$20,000 from carryover authority from the state rail fund, maintained by the Department of Transportation under Section 49-17.1-02.1; and \$125,000 from the shipper participating in the rail rate case and other sources. The Public Service Commission must have written commitments for the \$125,000 from other sources before spending any moneys from the beginning farmer revolving loan fund.

The Senate had reduced the funding for the rail rate complaint case from \$1,200,000 to \$970,000, of which \$800,000 was from the beginning farmer revolving loan fund and \$170,000 from other sources.

³ The conference committee agreed with the Senate amendment which added funding for improvements to the sound system in the Public Service Commission hearing room.

The conference committee agreed with the Senate amendment adding legislative intent that the Public Service Commission hearing room be available to other state agencies and the Legislative Assembly when not in use by the Public Service Commission.

The conference committee changed the study of the Public Service Commission fees and services to a study of the changes in duties and responsibilities of the Public Service Commission.

Engrossed HB 1008 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. KEMPENICH MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed HB 1008 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed HB 1008, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1008: A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the public service commission; to provide an appropriation for a rail rate complaint case; to amend and reenact section 49-01-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the salary of public service commissioners; to provide for a legislative council study; to provide an exemption to section 54-44.1-11 relating to unexpended appropriations; to provide legislative intent; and to declare an emergency.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 76 YEAS, 14 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Bellew; Berg; Bernstein; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Carlisle; Carlson; Charging; Clark; Conrad; Damschen; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; Devlin; Dietrich; Dosch; Drovda; Froseth; Galvin; Glassheim; Grande; Haas; Headland; Herbel; Horter; Hunskor; Iverson; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kerzman; Kingsbury; Klemm; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Maragos; Martinson; Meier, L.; Monson; Nelson; Nicholas; Norland; Nottestad; Onstad; Pietsch; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Price; Rennerfeldt; Ruby; Sandvig; Schmidt; Sitte; Skarphol; Solberg;

Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Timm; Uglem; Vigasaa; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Wrangham; Speaker Klein

NAYS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Belter; Brusegaard; Ekstrom; Froelich; Gulleson; Hanson; Hawken; Kaldor; Kasper; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Mueller

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Brandenburg; Owens; Wald; Zaiser

Engrossed HB 1008 passed, the title was agreed to, and the emergency clause was declared carried.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

HB 1009, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Bowman, Thane, Krauter and Reps. Kempenich, Carlisle, Kroeber) recommends that the **SENATE RECEDE** from the Senate amendments on HJ pages 1524-1525, adopt amendments as follows, and place HB 1009 on the Seventh order:

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1524-1526 of the House Journal and pages 1190-1192 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1009 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 2, remove "4-01-19,"

Page 1, line 3, remove "pride of Dakota program, the"

Page 1, line 5, after "fees" insert "; to provide a contingent appropriation; to provide for a legislative council study"

Page 2, line 7, replace "1,211,582" with "1,243,463"

Page 2, line 8, replace "822,550" with "896,050"

Page 2, line 11, replace "1,310,099" with "1,309,224"

Page 2, after line 11, insert:
"Contingent appropriation - wildlife services 130,000"

Page 2, remove line 17

Page 2, line 19, replace "1,520,341" with "1,554,847"

Page 2, line 20, replace "1,318,026" with "1,294,916"

Page 2, line 21, replace "202,315" with "259,931"

Page 2, line 27, replace "5,706,552" with "5,738,433"

Page 2, line 28, replace "4,182,375" with "4,255,875"

Page 2, line 31, replace "2,179,563" with "2,178,688"

Page 2, after line 31, insert:
"Contingent appropriation - wildlife services 130,000"

Page 3, line 1, replace "225,000" with "25,000"

Page 3, line 2, replace "14,072,715" with "14,107,221"

Page 3, line 3, replace "9,636,875" with "9,613,765"

Page 3, line 4, replace "4,435,840" with "4,493,456"

Page 3, line 7, replace "\$2,805,077" with "\$2,855,077"

Page 3, remove lines 22 through 30

Page 8, after line 24, insert:

"SECTION 13. CONTINGENT APPROPRIATION - WILDLIFE SERVICES.

The contingent appropriation - wildlife services contained in section 3 of this Act is a contingent appropriation out of any moneys in the game and fish fund, not otherwise appropriated, to the agriculture commissioner for the wildlife services program. This funding is in addition to the funding identified in section 6 of this Act. If the federal funding for the cooperative wildlife damage management program for North Dakota wildlife services for federal fiscal year 2006 is less than \$400,000, then \$65,000 of the appropriation is available for wildlife services programs and if the same federal funding is less than \$400,000 for federal fiscal year 2007, an additional \$65,000 of the appropriation is available for wildlife services programs.

SECTION 14. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STUDY - MEAT INSPECTION LICENSE FEES. The legislative council shall consider studying, during the 2005-06 interim, the feasibility and desirability of implementing a license fee for businesses receiving state meat inspection program services and whether the fee would impact the number of businesses that would use the federal meat inspection service rather than the state service. The legislative council shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixtieth legislative assembly."

Renumber accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:**House Bill No. 1009 - Department of Agriculture - Conference Committee Action**

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	HOUSE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	SENATE VERSION	COMPARISON TO SENATE
Salaries and wages	\$5,766,637	\$5,706,552	\$31,881	\$5,738,433	\$5,738,433	
Operating expenses	4,358,278	4,182,375	73,500	4,255,875	4,255,875	
Capital assets	5,000	5,000		5,000	5,000	
Grants	1,524,225	1,774,225		1,774,225	1,724,225	\$50,000
Board of Animal Health	2,374,832	2,179,563	(875)	2,178,688	2,178,688	
Crop Harmonization Board	225,000	225,000	(200,000)	25,000	25,000	
Contingent appropriation			130,000	130,000	130,000	
Total all funds	\$14,253,972	\$14,072,715	\$34,506	\$14,107,221	\$14,057,221	\$50,000
Less estimated income	9,368,014	9,636,875	(23,110)	9,613,765	9,563,765	50,000
General fund	\$4,885,958	\$4,435,840	\$57,616	\$4,493,456	\$4,493,456	\$0
FTE	61.00	61.00	0.00	61.00	61.00	0.00

Dept. 602 - Department of Agriculture - Detail of Conference Committee Changes

	REDUCES RECOMMENDED FUNDING FOR HEALTH INSURANCE ¹	REMOVES FUNDING FOR CROP HARMONIZATION BOARD ²	INCREASES FUNDING FOR PROJECT SAFE SEND ³	RESTORES FUNDING FOR MEAT INSPECTION PROGRAM ⁴	ADDS CONTINGENT FUNDING FOR WILDLIFE SERVICES ⁵	TOTAL CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES
Salaries and wages	(\$6,114)			\$37,995		\$31,881
Operating expenses			\$50,000	23,500		73,500
Capital assets						
Grants						
Board of Animal Health	(875)					(875)
Crop Harmonization Board		(\$200,000)				(200,000)
Contingent appropriation					\$130,000	130,000
Total all funds	(\$6,989)	(\$200,000)	\$50,000	\$61,495	\$130,000	\$34,506
Less estimated income	(3,110)	(200,000)	50,000		130,000	(23,110)
General fund	(\$3,879)	\$0	\$0	\$61,495	\$0	\$57,616
FTE	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

¹ This amendment reduces funding for state employee health insurance premiums from \$559.15 to \$553.95 per month.

² The Senate reduced the appropriation authority for the Crop Harmonization Board which is not needed because of continuing appropriation authority.

³ The Senate increased funding for Project Safe Send by \$50,000 from the environment and rangeland protection fund.

⁴ The Senate restored funding for a meat inspector position and related operating expenses.

⁵ The Senate added \$130,000 from the game and fish fund, contingent on federal funds not being available for the program. If the federal funding for the cooperative wildlife damage management program for North Dakota Wildlife Services for federal fiscal year 2006 is less than \$400,000, then \$65,000 of game and fish funds are appropriated for wildlife services programs. If the federal funding for the cooperative wildlife damage management program for North Dakota Wildlife Services for federal fiscal year 2007 is less than \$400,000, then \$65,000 of game and fish funds are appropriated for wildlife services programs.

The conference committee restored \$50,000 from the environment and rangeland protection fund for saltcedar surveys and eradication. The Senate had reduced funding by this amount.

The conference committee provided for a Legislative Council study of the feasibility and desirability of implementing a license fee for businesses receiving services under the state meat inspection program.

Engrossed HB 1009 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. KEMPENICH MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed HB 1009 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed HB 1009, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1009: A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the agriculture commissioner; to amend and reenact sections 4-01-21, 4-22-22, 4-37-03, 4-37-04, and 19-18-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the salary of the agriculture commissioner, compensation of supervisors of soil conservation districts, the agriculture in the classroom program, and pesticide registration fees; to provide a contingent appropriation; to provide for a legislative council study; and to provide for transfers.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 88 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Bellew; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brusegaard; Carlisle; Carlson; Charging; Clark; Conrad; Damschen; DeKrey; Delmore; Devlin; Dietrich; Dosch; Ekstrom; Froelich; Froseth; Galvin; Glassheim; Grande; Gulleon; Haas; Hanson; Hawken; Headland; Herbel; Horter; Hunskor; Iverson; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kerzman; Kingsbury; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Maragos; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Monson; Mueller; Nelson; Nicholas; Norland; Nottestad; Onstad; Pietsch; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Price; Rennerfeldt; Ruby; Sandvig; Schmidt; Sitte; Skarphol; Solberg; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Timm; Uglem; Vigesaa; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Wrangham; Speaker Klein

NAYS: Delzer; Drovdal

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Brandenburg; Owens; Wald; Zaiser

Engrossed HB 1009 passed and the title was agreed to.

MOTION

REP. MONSON MOVED that HB 1252 be moved to the top of the Seventh order, which motion prevailed.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

HB 1252, as reengrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. J. Lee, Fischer, Mathern and Reps. Price, Delzer, Sandvig) recommends that the **SENATE RECEDE** from the Senate amendments on HJ pages 1568-1569, adopt amendments as follows, and place HB 1252 on the Seventh order:

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1568 and 1569 of the House Journal and pages 847 and 848 of the Senate Journal and that Reengrossed House Bill No. 1252 be amended as follows:

Page 4, line 7, replace "three" with "four"

Renumber accordingly

Reengrossed HB 1252 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. PRICE MOVED that the conference committee report on Reengrossed HB 1252 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a verification vote.

Reengrossed HB 1252, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1252: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 50-24.4-06 and 50-24.4-10, subsection 1 of section 50-24.4-11, sections 50-24.4-13, 50-24.4-14, 50-24.4-16, 50-24.4-19, and 50-24.4-27, and subsection 3 of section 50-24.5-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to nursing home rates and basic care rates; and to repeal section 50-24.4-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to interim rates for nursing homes.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 78 YEAS, 12 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Bellew; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boe; Boehning; Brusegaard; Carlisle; Carlson; Charging; Clark; Damschen; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; Devlin; Dietrich; Dosch; Drovda; Froelich; Froseth; Galvin; Grande; Gulleson; Haas; Hanson; Headland; Herbel; Horter; Hunskor; Iverson; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Kasper; Keiser; Kempenich; Kerzman; Kingsbury; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Maragos; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Monson; Mueller; Nelson; Nicholas; Norland; Nottestad; Pietsch; Pollert; Potter; Price; Rennerfeldt; Ruby; Schmidt; Sitte; Skarphol; Solberg; Svedjan; Thoreson; Timm; Uglem; Vigasaa; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Wrangham; Speaker Klein

NAYS: Boucher; Conrad; Ekstrom; Glassheim; Hawken; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, S.; Kroeber; Onstad; Porter; Sandvig; Thorpe

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Brandenburg; Owens; Wald; Zaiser

Reengrossed HB 1252 passed and the title was agreed to.

MOTION

REP. MONSON MOVED that the House stand in recess until 4:00 p.m., which motion prevailed.

THE HOUSE RECONVENED pursuant to recess taken, with Speaker Klein presiding.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

HB 1010, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Grindberg, Kringstad, Tallackson and Reps. Timm, Carlisle, Williams) recommends that the **SENATE RECEDE** from the Senate amendments on HJ page 1628, adopt amendments as follows, and place HB 1010 on the Seventh order:

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on page 1628 of the House Journal and page 1344 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1010 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 3, after the semicolon insert "to provide for a legislative council study;"

Page 1, line 21, replace "361,269" with "355,279"

Page 1, line 22, replace "331,876" with "381,876"

Page 2, line 1, replace "2,116,000" with "1,116,000"

Page 2, line 2, replace "2,702,245" with "1,746,255"

Page 2, line 3, replace "2,802,245" with "1,846,255"

Page 2, line 10, replace "5,059,647" with "5,053,657"

Page 2, line 11, replace "2,113,377" with "2,163,377"

Page 2, line 12, replace "7,420,000" with "6,420,000"

Page 2, line 13, replace "14,593,024" with "13,637,034"

Page 2, line 15, replace "\$7,420,000" with "\$6,420,000"

Page 2, line 16, replace "\$7,200,000" with "\$6,200,000"

Page 3, after line 9, insert:

"SECTION 10. CRITICAL METHAMPHETAMINE-USE ZONE ADDITION.

Notwithstanding rules adopted by the commissioner identifying a critical methamphetamine-use zone, the commissioner shall designate the counties of Walsh, Cavalier, and Pembina as a critical methamphetamine-use zone subject to section 19-20.2-11 and rules adopted pursuant to that section. Section 3 of this Act includes the sum of \$50,000 from the insurance regulatory trust fund, or so much of the sum as is necessary, to implement security measures established by the commissioner, including the purchase and distribution of locking devices, in the counties of Walsh, Cavalier, and Pembina, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2005, and ending June 30, 2007.

SECTION 11. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STUDY - HEALTH CARE AND HEALTH INSURANCE STUDY PROPOSAL.

During the 2005-06 interim, the legislative council shall consider studying the desirability of proposing a comprehensive health care and health insurance study to be performed during the 2007-08 interim. The 2005-06 interim study must include consideration of whether there is a need for a comprehensive, long-range study of the state's current and future health care needs in order to address issues such as the aging population of the state, the phenomenon of health care cost-shifting to the private sector, the trend of uncompensated health care services, shortages in the number of health care professionals, duplication of technology and facilities, and any other factors that might affect the health care system in North Dakota in the year 2020. If the study results in a proposal for a comprehensive health care and health insurance study, the proposal must address the parameters of the proposed study and how the proposed study will be designed in order to allow for significant consumer input. The legislative council shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixtieth legislative assembly.

SECTION 12. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STUDY - ACCIDENT AND HEALTH INSURANCE LOSS RATIOS.

During the 2005-06 interim, the legislative council shall study the appropriate minimum standard of loss ratio for accident and health insurers and whether that loss ratio is more appropriately set by statute or by rule. The legislative council shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixtieth legislative assembly."

ReNUMBER accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

House Bill No. 1010 - Insurance Department - Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	HOUSE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	SENATE VERSION	COMPARISON TO SENATE
Salaries and wages	\$5,080,549	\$5,059,647	(\$5,990)	\$5,053,657	\$5,053,657	
Operating expenses	2,113,377	2,113,377	50,000	2,163,377	2,163,377	
Grants	5,304,000	7,420,000	(1,000,000)	6,420,000	6,395,000	\$25,000
Health care and insurance study						
Total all funds	\$12,497,926	\$14,593,024	(\$955,990)	\$13,637,034	\$13,612,034	\$25,000
Less estimated income	<u>12,497,926</u>	<u>14,593,024</u>	<u>(955,990)</u>	<u>13,637,034</u>	<u>13,612,034</u>	<u>25,000</u>
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
FTE	46.50	46.50	0.00	46.50	46.50	0.00

Dept. 401 - Insurance Department - Detail of Conference Committee Changes

REDUCES PROVIDES
FUNDING FOR REDUCES

	RECOMMENDED FUNDING FOR HEALTH INSURANCE 1	IMPLEMENTING METHAMPHETAMINE SECURITY MEASURES 2	FUNDING FOR PAYMENTS TO FIRE DEPARTMENTS 3	TOTAL CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES
Salaries and wages	(\$5,990)			(\$5,990)
Operating expenses		\$50,000		50,000
Grants			(\$1,000,000)	(1,000,000)
Health care and insurance study				
Total all funds	(\$5,990)	\$50,000	(\$1,000,000)	(\$955,990)
Less estimated income	(5,990)	50,000	(1,000,000)	(955,990)
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
FTE	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

¹ This amendment reduces funding for state employee health insurance premiums from \$559.15 to \$553.95 per month.

² The conference committee agreed with the Senate amendment to provide a \$50,000 special funds appropriation from the insurance regulatory trust fund for implementing methamphetamine security measures, including the purchase and distribution of locking devices. The conference committee also agreed with the Senate amendment to add a new section to the bill allowing the commissioner to designate the counties of Walsh, Cavalier, and Pembina as a critical methamphetamine-use zone.

³ The conference committee agree with the Senate amendment to reduce funding provided from the insurance premium tax collections for payments to fire departments by \$1 million, from \$7.2 million as provided by the House to \$6.2 million. Funding of \$6.2 million represents an increase in funding of \$1 million from the \$5.2 million provided in the 2003-05 biennium.

The conference committee agreed to provide funding of \$100,000 from insurance premium tax collections for a grant to the North Dakota Association of Oil and Gas Producing Counties, the same level as provided by the House. The Senate had reduced funding for the grant by \$25,000, from \$100,000 to \$75,000.

The conference committee agreed with the Senate amendment to add a section to the bill to provide for a Legislative Council study of accident and health insurance loss ratios.

The conference committee also agreed to add a section to the bill to provide for a Legislative Council study of health care and health insurance. This study was not included in either the House or Senate version of the bill.

Engrossed HB 1010 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. TIMM MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed HB 1010 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a verification vote.

Engrossed HB 1010, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1010: A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the insurance commissioner; to provide for fund transfers; to provide for making payments of insurance premiums tax collections to fire departments; to provide for a legislative council study; and to amend and reenact section 26.1-01-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the commissioner's salary.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 77 YEAS, 13 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Bellew; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehning; Boucher; Brusegaard; Carlisle; Carlson; Charging; Clark; Conrad; Delmore; Dietrich; Dosch; Drovdal; Ekstrom; Froelich; Froseth; Galvin; Glassheim; Grande; Gulleson; Haas; Hanson; Hawken; Headland; Herbel; Horter; Hunskor; Iverson; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kerzman; Kingsbury; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Monson; Mueller; Nicholas; Norland; Nottestad; Owens; Pietsch; Porter; Potter; Price; Rennerfeldt; Sandvig; Sitte; Solberg; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Timm; Uglem; Vigasaa; Wall; Weiler; Wieland; Williams; Speaker Klein

NAYS: Boe; Damschen; DeKrey; Delzer; Devlin; Nelson; Onstad; Pollert; Ruby; Schmidt; Skarphol; Weisz; Wrangham

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Brandenburg; Maragos; Wald; Zaiser

Engrossed HB 1010 passed and the title was agreed to.

MOTION

REP. MONSON MOVED that SB 2267 be moved to the top of the Seventh order, which motion prevailed.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

SB 2267, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Schobinger, Holmberg, Tallackson and Reps. Delzer, Pollert, Metcalf) recommends that the **HOUSE RECEDE** from the House amendments on SJ pages 1276-1277, adopt amendments as follows, and place SB 2267 on the Seventh order:

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1276 and 1277 of the Senate Journal and pages 1440 and 1441 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2267 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and enact section 57-39.2-26.2 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to allocation of sales, use, and motor vehicle excise tax revenues to a state matching program for senior citizen services and programs; to amend and reenact subsection 5 of section 57-15-56 and section 57-39.2-26 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to a state matching program for senior citizen services and programs; to provide a continuing appropriation; to provide a statement of legislative intent; and to provide an effective date.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 5 of section 57-15-56 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

5. ~~The department of human services state treasurer shall provide matching funds as provided in this subsection for the amounts levied by counties and cities for senior citizen services and programs operated pursuant to funded as required by this section. The grants must be made on or before March first of each year and must be equal to the amount levied for the previous taxable year by each county or city within the limitations of legislative appropriations, provided that no such to each eligible county. A county receiving a grant under this section which has not levied a tax under this section shall transfer the amount received to a city within the county which has levied a tax under this section. A grant may not be made to any county or city which that has not filed with the department of human services state treasurer a required written report verifying that grant funds received in the previous year under this subsection have been budgeted for the same purposes permitted for the expenditure of proceeds of a tax levied under this section. The written report must be received by the department of human services state treasurer on or before February first of each year following a year in which the reporting county or city received grant funds under this subsection. A matching fund grant must be provided from the senior citizen services and programs fund to each eligible county equal to two-thirds of the amount levied in dollars in the county under this section for the taxable year, but the matching fund grant applies only to a levy of up to one mill under this section.~~

It is the intent of the legislative assembly that counties or cities allocate an amount equal to one-third of one mill of property tax revenue from their funds raised or received under section 57-15-06, 57-15-08, or 57-39.2-26.1, or any combination of those fund sources, for senior citizen services and programs for each taxable year. A continuing appropriation of state matching funds and expectation of a local matching fund effort is initiated because of the anticipated increase in state aid distribution fund allocations, with the intent of stabilizing matching funds for senior citizen services and programs at a funding level of one mill for all participating counties. A county is not required to provide the one-third of one mill matching funds if the county program can be covered with the funding from the state and the levy under this section in the county. It is also anticipated that this change in funding will allow reduction of mill levies under this section in some counties, which will allow allocation of unused amounts under section 57-39.2-26.2 among counties levying the statutory maximum amount for taxable year 2004.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 57-39.2-26 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

57-39.2-26. Allocation of revenue. ~~All~~ Except as provided by sections 57-39.2-6.1 and 57-39.2-26.2, all moneys collected and received under this chapter must be paid into the state treasury and must be credited by the state treasurer to the general fund. Moneys deposited with the commissioner as security for the payment of tax, penalties, or costs due must be deposited and accounted for as provided in subsection 3 of section 57-39.2-12.

SECTION 3. Section 57-39.2-26.2 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

57-39.2-26.2. Allocation of revenues to senior citizen services and programs matching fund - Continuing appropriation. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a portion of sales, use, and motor vehicle excise tax collections equal to the amount of revenue that would have been generated by a levy of two-thirds of one mill on the taxable valuation of all property in the state subject to a levy under section 57-15-56 in the previous taxable year must be deposited by the state treasurer in the senior citizen services and programs fund during the period from July first through December thirty-first of each year. The state tax commissioner shall certify to the state treasurer the portion of sales, use, and motor vehicle excise tax revenues which must be deposited in the fund as determined under this section. Revenues deposited in the senior citizen services and programs fund are provided as a standing and continuing appropriation for allocation as provided in subsection 5 of section 57-15-56. Any unexpended and unobligated amount in the senior citizen services and programs fund at the end of the 2005-07 biennium must be allocated among counties that levied the statutory maximum mill levy for taxable year 2004 in proportion to the dollars generated by those levies in those counties for that year but the allocation to any county may not exceed the difference between combined funding for the county's senior citizen services and programs for taxable year 2004 and the combined funding for those services and programs for taxable year 2006 and any remaining unexpended and unobligated amount at the end of any biennium must be transferred by the state treasurer to the state general fund.

SECTION 4. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - HOME-DELIVERED MEALS. It is the intent of the fifty-ninth legislative assembly that the department of human services encourage providers, to the extent possible, to allocate additional resources to make available more home-delivered meals for the biennium beginning July 1, 2005, and ending June 30, 2007.

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act is effective for tax collections received after June 30, 2005."

Renumber accordingly

Engrossed SB 2267 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. DELZER MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2267 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed SB 2267, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order.

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

SB 2267: A BILL for an Act to create and enact section 57-39.2-26.2 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to allocation of sales, use, and motor vehicle excise tax revenues to a state matching program for senior citizen services and programs; to amend and reenact subsection 5 of section 57-15-56 and section 57-39.2-26 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to a state matching program for senior citizen services and programs; to provide a continuing appropriation; to provide a statement of legislative intent; and to provide an effective date.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 83 YEAS, 7 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Bellew; Berg; Bernstein; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brusegaard; Carlisle; Carlson; Charging; Clark; Damschen; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; Devlin;

Dietrich; Dosch; Drovdal; Ekstrom; Froelich; Froseth; Galvin; Glassheim; Grande; Gulleon; Haas; Hanson; Hawken; Headland; Herbel; Horter; Hunskor; Iverson; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kerzman; Kingsbury; Klemm; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Monson; Mueller; Nelson; Nicholas; Norland; Nottestad; Owens; Pietsch; Pollert; Potter; Price; Rennerfeldt; Schmidt; Sitte; Skarphol; Solberg; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Timm; Uglem; Vigesaa; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Wrangham; Speaker Klein

NAYS: Belter; Conrad; Kelsch, R.; Onstad; Porter; Ruby; Sandvig

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Brandenburg; Maragos; Wald; Zaiser

Engrossed SB 2267 passed and the title was agreed to.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

HB 1012, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Fischer, Kilzer, Mathern and Reps. Delzer, Pollert, Kerzman) recommends that the **SENATE RECEDE** from the Senate amendments on HJ pages 1628-1636, adopt amendments as follows, and place HB 1012 on the Seventh order:

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1628-1636 of the House Journal and pages 1286-1294 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1012 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 2, replace "and" with "an" and after "study" insert "; to provide an appropriation to the state department of health"

Page 1, line 3, remove "and" and after "authority" insert "; to create and enact a new section to chapter 25-18 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to providing services to medically fragile children; to amend and reenact subsection 10 of section 54-44.8-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to telecommunications equipment; and to declare an emergency"

Page 3, line 29, replace "\$486,633" with "\$498,738"

Page 3, line 30, replace "(1,787,339)" with "27,401,520"

Page 4, line 2, replace "\$5,535,466" with "\$23,641,288"

Page 4, line 3, replace "11,288,586" with "17,895,373"

Page 4, line 4, replace "5,753,120" with "5,745,915"

Page 4, line 7, replace "699,801" with "670,847"

Page 4, line 8, replace "(109,195)" with "(104,195)"

Page 4, line 10, replace "44,572,418" with "44,150,725"

Page 4, line 11, replace "71,360,100" with "84,529,164"

Page 4, line 12, replace "116,517,316" with "129,240,733"

Page 4, line 13, replace "63,463,933" with "74,019,612"

Page 4, line 14, replace "53,053,383" with "55,221,121"

Page 4, line 19, replace "43,292" with "37,052"

Page 4, line 20, replace "39,123" with "35,963"

Page 4, line 21, replace "4,169" with "1,089"

Page 4, line 23, replace "713,327" with "698,351"

Page 4, line 24, replace "533,839" with "526,839"

Page 4, line 25, replace "179,488" with "171,512"

Page 4, line 27, replace "680,656" with "672,918"

Page 4, line 28, replace "431,083" with "427,285"

Page 4, line 29, replace "249,573" with "245,633"

Page 5, line 2, replace "1,055,769" with "1,037,049"

Page 5, line 3, replace "745,840" with "734,210"

Page 5, line 4, replace "309,929" with "302,839"

Page 5, line 6, replace "2,801,880" with "2,779,416"

Page 5, line 7, replace "2,430,373" with "2,417,169"

Page 5, line 8, replace "371,507" with "362,247"

Page 5, line 10, replace "780,171" with "769,313"

Page 5, line 11, replace "578,413" with "572,445"

Page 5, line 12, replace "201,758" with "196,868"

Page 5, line 14, replace "920,924" with "905,199"

Page 5, line 15, replace "537,278" with "529,098"

Page 5, line 16, replace "383,646" with "376,101"

Page 5, line 18, replace "383,660" with "373,926"

Page 5, line 19, replace "250,774" with "245,520"

Page 5, line 20, replace "132,886" with "128,406"

Page 5, line 22, replace "230,001" with "292,827"

Page 5, line 23, replace "5,430,860" with "5,424,120"

Page 5, line 24, replace "5,660,861" with "5,716,947"

Page 5, line 25, replace "(728,482)" with "(746,586)"

Page 5, line 26, replace "6,389,343" with "6,463,533"

Page 5, line 28, replace "1,463,546" with "1,403,643"

Page 5, line 29, replace "(1,124,148)" with "(1,168,531)"

Page 5, line 30, replace "2,587,694" with "2,572,174"

Page 5, line 31, replace "14,254,086" with "14,143,814"

Page 6, line 1, replace "3,694,093" with "3,573,412"

Page 6, line 2, replace "10,559,993" with "10,570,402"

Page 6, line 3, replace "69,366,496" with "71,537,438"

Page 6, line 4, replace "55,869,440" with "95,488,397"

Page 6, line 5, replace "125,235,936" with "167,025,835"

Page 6, line 14, replace "10,529,652" with "10,517,547"

Page 6, line 15, replace "31,779,849" with "60,968,708"

Page 6, line 17, replace "42,312,257" with "71,489,011"

Page 6, line 18, replace "22,841,521" with "52,025,480"

Page 6, line 19, replace "19,470,736" with "19,463,531"

Page 6, line 22, replace "22,753,582" with "22,724,628"

Page 6, line 23, replace "37,272,214" with "37,277,214"

Page 6, line 25, replace "333,260,143" with "332,838,450"

Page 6, line 26, replace "993,037,274" with "1,006,206,338"

Page 6, line 27, replace "1,386,357,077" with "1,399,080,494"

Page 6, line 28, replace "1,022,556,015" with "1,033,111,694"

Page 6, line 29, replace "363,801,062" with "365,968,800"

Page 7, line 3, replace "7,318,971" with "7,312,731"

Page 7, line 4, replace "3,684,763" with "3,681,603"

Page 7, line 5, replace "3,634,208" with "3,631,128"

Page 7, line 7, replace "15,278,197" with "15,263,221"

Page 7, line 8, replace "7,257,513" with "7,250,513"

Page 7, line 9, replace "8,020,684" with "8,012,708"

Page 7, line 11, replace "9,101,589" with "9,093,851"

Page 7, line 12, replace "4,214,056" with "4,210,258"

Page 7, line 13, replace "4,887,533" with "4,883,593"

Page 7, line 15, replace "20,496,952" with "20,478,232"

Page 7, line 16, replace "12,190,660" with "12,179,030"

Page 7, line 17, replace "8,306,292" with "8,299,202"

Page 7, line 19, replace "23,526,422" with "23,503,958"

Page 7, line 20, replace "13,645,595" with "13,632,391"

Page 7, line 21, replace "9,880,827" with "9,871,567"

Page 7, line 23, replace "12,139,146" with "12,128,288"

Page 7, line 24, replace "6,310,281" with "6,304,313"

Page 7, line 25, replace "5,828,865" with "5,823,975"

Page 7, line 27, replace "18,505,768" with "18,490,043"

Page 7, line 28, replace "9,658,913" with "9,650,733"

Page 7, line 29, replace "8,846,855" with "8,839,310"

Page 8, line 1, replace "9,308,287" with "9,298,553"

Page 8, line 2, replace "4,809,497" with "4,804,243"

Page 8, line 3, replace "4,498,790" with "4,494,310"

Page 8, line 5, replace "42,119,562" with "42,182,388"

Page 8, line 6, replace "5,430,860" with "5,424,120"

Page 8, line 7, replace "47,550,422" with "47,606,508"

Page 8, line 8, replace "15,676,878" with "15,658,774"

Page 8, line 9, replace "31,873,544" with "31,947,734"

Page 8, line 11, replace "42,224,603" with "42,164,700"

Page 8, line 12, replace "30,825,680" with "30,781,297"

Page 8, line 13, replace "11,398,923" with "11,383,403"

Page 8, line 14, replace "205,450,357" with "205,340,085"

Page 8, line 15, replace "108,273,836" with "108,153,155"

Page 8, line 16, replace "97,176,521" with "97,186,930"

Page 8, line 17, replace "480,448,319" with "482,619,261"

Page 8, line 18, replace "1,153,671,372" with "1,193,290,329"

Page 8, line 19, replace "1,634,119,691" with "1,675,909,590"

Page 9, line 11, replace "\$114,755" with "\$254,356"

Page 9, after line 14, insert:

"SECTION 8. ESTIMATED INCOME - LIMIT - PERMANENT OIL TAX TRUST FUND. Notwithstanding section 57-51.1-07.2, the estimated income line item in subdivision 1 of section 3 of this Act includes \$3,667,820 from the permanent oil tax trust fund. The department of human services expenditures from this fund may not exceed this amount for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act, and ending June 30, 2007."

Page 9, after line 18, insert:

"SECTION 10. FUNDING FOR CORPORATE GUARDIANSHIP PETITIONING COSTS. The department of human services may spend up to \$30,000 of the funds appropriated in the operating expenses line item in subdivision 2 of section 3 of this Act for paying petitioning costs for indigent individuals with developmental disabilities who have been referred for corporate guardianship for the biennium beginning July 1, 2005, and ending June 30, 2007.

SECTION 11. FEDERAL MEDICAL ASSISTANCE PERCENTAGE CHANGES - DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES PROGRAM REVIEW - LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL REPORT. During the 2005-06 interim, the department of human services shall determine the fiscal effect of anticipated changes in the federal medical assistance percentage for North Dakota for federal fiscal years 2007 and 2008. The department, with input from service providers, shall review its budget and programs and services to determine the extent to which the department can provide for additional general fund requirements resulting from federal matching changes without affecting the level of services provided by the department. If the department determines that programs and services will be affected, the department, with input from service providers, shall identify programs and services to reduce or discontinue to maintain its general fund budget within the funding level approved by the 2005 legislative assembly. By July 1, 2006, the department shall report to the legislative council regarding its budget and program review and its suggestions for programs and services to reduce or discontinue, including any legislation necessary to make the suggested changes. The legislative council shall receive the department's report and report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixtieth legislative assembly.

SECTION 12. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STUDY - QUALIFIED SERVICE PROVIDER PAYMENT SYSTEM. The legislative council shall consider studying, during the 2005-06 interim, the department of human services system of paying qualified service providers. The study must include a review of the appropriateness of payment levels to various providers. The legislative council shall report its findings and

recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixtieth legislative assembly.

SECTION 13. APPROPRIATION - STATE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH.

There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$30,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the state department of health for the purpose of providing a grant for suicide prevention programs on the Standing Rock Indian Reservation for the biennium beginning July 1, 2005, and ending June 30, 2007."

Page 9, line 25, after the period insert "The study, if conducted, must also include, with input from representatives of the department of human services, the long-term care industry, and the federal centers for medicare and medicaid services, the possibility of accessing additional federal funding through the intergovernmental transfer process. The legislative council shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixtieth legislative assembly.

SECTION 15. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STUDY - RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT CENTER AND RESIDENTIAL CHILD CARE FACILITY PAYMENT SYSTEMS. The legislative council shall consider studying, during the 2005-06 interim, the services provided by residential treatment centers and residential child care facilities and the appropriateness of the payments provided by the state for these services. The legislative council shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixtieth legislative assembly.

SECTION 16. PLAN TO TRANSFER APPROPRIATE DEVELOPMENTAL CENTER RESIDENTS TO COMMUNITIES - LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL REPORT. The department of human services, with input from developmental disabilities services providers, shall develop, during the 2005-06 interim, a plan to transfer appropriate individuals from the developmental center to community placements and begin the transfers during the 2005-07 biennium. The department shall report to the legislative council on its plan and on the anticipated number of individuals that will be transferred during the 2005-07 biennium.

SECTION 17. DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES AND INDIAN AFFAIRS COMMISSION - CHILD SUPPORT - STATE AND TRIBAL COURT COORDINATION. The department of human services and the indian affairs commission shall collaborate to facilitate the coordination of state and tribal court activities to increase the amount of child support collected for noncustodial parents for the biennium beginning July 1, 2005, and ending June 30, 2007.

SECTION 18. A new section to chapter 25-18 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Payment for services to medically fragile children. The department may consider the unique level of care, the additional cost required to provide services to medically fragile clients under twenty-one years of age, and the actual and reasonable cost of providing services to developmentally disabled individuals when reimbursing an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded.

SECTION 19. AMENDMENT. Subsection 10 of section 54-44.8-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

10. "Specialized telecommunications equipment" means a dedicated telecommunications device that, when connected to a telephone, enables or assists a person who is communications impaired to communicate with another person utilizing the telephone network. The term may include telecommunications devices for the deaf, amplifiers, and signaling devices. Specialized telecommunications equipment provided under this chapter to an individual may not exceed two thousand dollars in total cost per device.

SECTION 20. EMERGENCY. The appropriation of \$29,188,859 included in subdivision 1 of section 3 of this Act for the medicaid management information system replacement project and section 19 of this Act are declared to be an emergency measure."

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

House Bill No. 1012 - Summary of Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	HOUSE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	SENATE VERSION	COMPARISON TO SENATE
State Department of Health						
Total all funds	\$0	\$0	\$30,000	\$30,000	\$0	\$30,000
Less estimated income						
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$30,000	\$30,000	\$0	\$30,000
DHS - Management						
Total all funds	\$71,539,214	\$42,312,257	\$29,176,754	\$71,489,011	\$71,489,011	\$0
Less estimated income	48,374,575	22,841,521	29,183,959	52,025,480	52,025,480	
General fund	\$23,164,639	\$19,470,736	(\$7,205)	\$19,463,531	\$19,463,531	\$0
DHS - Program/Policy						
Total all funds	\$1,396,151,539	\$1,386,357,077	\$12,723,417	\$1,399,080,494	\$1,389,331,530	\$9,748,964
Less estimated income	1,027,728,022	1,022,556,015	10,555,679	1,033,111,694	1,024,708,561	8,403,133
General fund	\$368,423,517	\$363,801,062	\$2,167,738	\$365,968,800	\$364,622,969	\$1,345,831
DHS - State Hospital						
Total all funds	\$47,728,538	\$47,550,422	\$56,086	\$47,606,508	\$47,606,508	\$0
Less estimated income	15,610,871	15,676,878	(18,104)	15,658,774	15,658,774	
General fund	\$32,117,667	\$31,873,544	\$74,190	\$31,947,734	\$31,947,734	\$0
DHS - Developmental Center						
Total all funds	\$43,046,377	\$42,224,603	(\$59,903)	\$42,164,700	\$42,164,700	\$0
Less estimated income	31,349,952	30,825,680	(44,383)	30,781,297	30,781,297	
General fund	\$11,696,425	\$11,398,923	(\$15,520)	\$11,383,403	\$11,383,403	\$0
DHS - Northwest HSC						
Total all funds	\$7,379,756	\$7,318,971	(\$6,240)	\$7,312,731	\$7,312,731	\$0
Less estimated income	3,691,210	3,684,763	(3,160)	3,681,603	3,681,603	
General fund	\$3,688,546	\$3,634,208	(\$3,080)	\$3,631,128	\$3,631,128	\$0
DHS - North Central HSC						
Total all funds	\$15,433,218	\$15,278,197	(\$14,976)	\$15,263,221	\$15,263,221	\$0
Less estimated income	7,270,196	7,257,513	(7,000)	7,250,513	7,250,513	
General fund	\$8,163,022	\$8,020,684	(\$7,976)	\$8,012,708	\$8,012,708	\$0
DHS - Lake Region HSC						
Total all funds	\$9,196,380	\$9,101,589	(\$7,738)	\$9,093,851	\$9,093,851	\$0
Less estimated income	4,221,881	4,214,056	(3,798)	4,210,258	4,210,258	
General fund	\$4,974,499	\$4,887,533	(\$3,940)	\$4,883,593	\$4,883,593	\$0
DHS - Northeast HSC						
Total all funds	\$20,696,142	\$20,496,952	(\$18,720)	\$20,478,232	\$20,478,232	\$0
Less estimated income	12,211,610	12,190,660	(11,630)	12,179,030	12,179,030	
General fund	\$8,484,532	\$8,306,292	(\$7,090)	\$8,299,202	\$8,299,202	\$0
DHS - Southeast HSC						
Total all funds	\$23,822,246	\$23,526,422	(\$22,464)	\$23,503,958	\$23,503,958	\$0
Less estimated income	13,673,717	13,645,595	(13,204)	13,632,391	13,632,391	
General fund	\$10,148,529	\$9,880,827	(\$9,260)	\$9,871,567	\$9,871,567	\$0
DHS - South Central HSC						
Total all funds	\$12,238,992	\$12,139,146	(\$10,858)	\$12,128,288	\$12,128,288	\$0
Less estimated income	6,322,357	6,310,281	(5,968)	6,304,313	6,304,313	
General fund	\$5,916,635	\$5,828,865	(\$4,890)	\$5,823,975	\$5,823,975	\$0
DHS - West Central HSC						
Total all funds	\$18,700,619	\$18,505,768	(\$15,725)	\$18,490,043	\$18,490,043	\$0
Less estimated income	9,675,203	9,658,913	(8,180)	9,650,733	9,650,733	
General fund	\$9,025,416	\$8,846,855	(\$7,545)	\$8,839,310	\$8,839,310	\$0
DHS - Badlands HSC						
Total all funds	\$9,388,791	\$9,308,287	(\$9,734)	\$9,298,553	\$9,298,553	\$0
Less estimated income	4,819,177	4,809,497	(5,254)	4,804,243	4,804,243	
General fund	\$4,569,614	\$4,498,790	(\$4,480)	\$4,494,310	\$4,494,310	\$0
Bill Total						
Total all funds	\$1,675,321,812	\$1,634,119,691	\$41,819,899	\$1,675,939,590	\$1,666,160,626	\$9,778,964
Less estimated income	1,184,948,771	1,153,671,372	39,618,957	1,193,290,329	1,184,887,196	8,403,133
General fund	\$490,373,041	\$480,448,319	\$2,200,942	\$482,649,261	\$481,273,430	\$1,375,831

House Bill No. 1012 - State Department of Health - Conference Committee Action

A section is added appropriating \$30,000 from the general fund to the State Department of Health for providing a grant for suicide prevention programs on the Standing Rock Indian Reservation.

House Bill No. 1012 - DHS - Management - Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	HOUSE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES ¹	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	SENATE VERSION	COMPARISON TO SENATE
Salaries and wages	\$10,567,750	\$10,529,652	(\$12,105)	\$10,517,547	\$10,517,547	
Operating expenses	60,968,708	31,779,849	29,188,859	60,968,708	60,968,708	
Capital assets	2,756	2,756		2,756	2,756	
Total all funds	\$71,539,214	\$42,312,257	\$29,176,754	\$71,489,011	\$71,489,011	\$0
Less estimated income	48,374,575	22,841,521	29,183,959	52,025,480	52,025,480	
General fund	\$23,164,639	\$19,470,736	(\$7,205)	\$19,463,531	\$19,463,531	\$0
FTE	99.10	99.10	0.00	99.10	99.10	0.00

	FTE	GENERAL FUND	ESTIMATED INCOME	TOTAL
¹Management - Conference Committee Changes:				
Reduces recommended funding for health insurance		(\$7,205)	(\$4,900)	(\$12,105)
Administration Support Program				
None				
Division of Information Technology Program				
Restores funding for the Medicaid management information system (MMIS) computer project removed by the House with state matching funds of \$3,667,820 provided from the permanent oil tax trust fund rather than the general fund. The Senate also restored the funding except used the health care trust fund for the state match.			29,188,859	29,188,859
Total Conference Committee Changes - Management	0.00	(\$7,205)	\$29,183,959	\$29,176,754

House Bill No. 1012 - DHS - Program/Policy - Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	HOUSE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES ¹	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	SENATE VERSION	COMPARISON TO SENATE
Salaries and wages	\$23,054,340	\$22,753,582	(\$28,954)	\$22,724,628	\$22,724,628	
Operating expenses	38,232,573	37,272,214	5,000	37,277,214	37,352,214	(\$75,000)
Capital assets	33,864	33,864		33,864	33,864	
Grants	334,055,993	333,260,143	(421,693)	332,838,450	333,622,731	(784,281)
Grants - Medical assistance	<u>1,000,774,769</u>	<u>993,037,274</u>	<u>13,169,064</u>	<u>1,006,206,338</u>	<u>995,598,093</u>	<u>10,608,245</u>
Total all funds	\$1,396,151,539	\$1,386,357,077	\$12,723,417	\$1,399,080,494	\$1,389,331,530	\$9,748,964
Less estimated income	<u>1,027,728,022</u>	<u>1,022,556,015</u>	<u>10,555,679</u>	<u>1,033,111,694</u>	<u>1,024,708,561</u>	<u>8,403,133</u>
General fund	\$368,423,517	\$363,801,062	\$2,167,738	\$365,968,800	\$364,622,969	\$1,345,831
FTE	233.30	232.30	0.00	232.30	232.30	0.00
	FTE		GENERAL FUND	ESTIMATED INCOME	TOTAL	

¹Program and Policy - Conference Committee Changes:

Reduces recommended funding for health insurance	(\$8,140)	(\$20,814)	(\$28,954)
Adds funding to reflect a portion of the estimated additional general funding matching funds that will be required under the Medicaid program resulting from an anticipated reduction in North Dakota's federal medical assistance percentage (FMAP) for federal fiscal year 2007 of .86 percent, from 63.23 percent estimated in the executive budget to the current estimate of 62.37 percent	3,100,000	(3,100,000)	

Economic Assistance Policy Program

Adds funding to calculate Indian county allocation grants at 100 percent of excess costs, rather than 90 percent, in accordance with provisions of Senate Bill No. 2301	311,178		311,178
---	---------	--	---------

Child Support Program

None

Medical Services Program

Restores funding reduced by the House from the community health trust fund for breast and cervical cancer treatment services, the same as the Senate version	139,601		139,601
Adds funding for the children's health insurance program (Healthy Steps) in anticipation of increased caseload resulting from implementation of the vision eligibility system, the same as the Senate version	428,425	1,607,893	2,036,318
Adds funding to provide for a 2.65 percent inflationary increase for each year of the biennium rather than 2 percent. The state match of \$846,712 is provided from the health care trust fund.		3,049,436	3,049,436

Long-Term Care Program

Adds funding to provide for a 2.65 percent inflationary increase for each year of the biennium rather than 2 percent. The state match of \$1,164,473 is provided from the health care trust fund.	2,814,580		2,814,580
---	-----------	--	-----------

Aging Services Program

Removes funding for the senior citizen mill levy matching grant program to reflect provisions of Senate Bill No. 2267 which provide a continuing appropriation to the State Treasurer	(1,662,945)		(1,662,945)
---	-------------	--	-------------

for providing these grants

Children and Family Services Program

Adds funding for increasing the maximum treatment services payment for residential child care facilities to \$15 per day. The House had added funding to increase the maximum payment from \$11.50 to \$14.15 per day and the Senate had added funding to increase the payment to \$15.	21,622	56,066	77,688
---	--------	--------	--------

Restores a portion of the House reductions made to the funding anticipated to be needed for foster care and subsidized adoption services. The House had reduced this funding by \$594,106, of which \$250,000 is from the general fund and the Senate restored the same amount as the conference committee.	100,000	184,900	284,900
---	---------	---------	---------

Changes the source of funding for children and family services programs from the general fund to federal temporary assistance for needy families (TANF) funds	(1,074,471)	1,074,471	
---	-------------	-----------	--

Adds funding to provide for a 2.65 percent inflationary increase for each year of the biennium rather than 2 percent. The state match of \$213,407 is provided from the health care trust fund.		567,486	567,486
---	--	---------	---------

Mental Health and Substance Abuse Program

None

Developmental Disabilities Council

None

Disabilities Program

Adds funding for increasing payment rates for facilities serving children with extensive medical needs, including the Anne Carlsen Center. The Senate also added this funding. This amount is in addition to the \$284,900 added by the House for this purpose.	100,000	184,900	284,900
---	---------	---------	---------

Adds funding for costs relating to transferring appropriate individuals from the Developmental Center to community placements. The department may use up to \$5,000 of this funding for developing the plan for these transfers. The Senate also added this funding but did not limit the amount that could be spent for the plan.	50,000		50,000
--	--------	--	--------

Restores funding to \$910,056 from the general fund for the family subsidy program, the same as the Senate version. The House had reduced funding for this program by \$100,000 from the general fund.	100,000		100,000
--	---------	--	---------

Adds funding to provide for a 2.65 percent inflationary increase for each year of the biennium rather than 2 percent. The state match of \$777,260 is provided from the health care trust fund.		2,163,480	2,163,480
---	--	-----------	-----------

Adds funding to increase the average wage of employees of developmental disabilities service providers by an additional 5 cents per hour for the first year of the biennium and by 20 cents per hour for the second year. Of the \$900,217 state match, \$198,148 is provided from the health care trust fund and the remaining \$702,069 from the general fund. The House added funding providing an additional 10 cents per hour for the first year of the biennium.	702,069	1,833,680	2,535,749
--	---------	-----------	-----------

Total Conference Committee Changes - Program and Policy	0.00	\$2,167,738	\$10,555,679	\$12,723,417
--	------	-------------	--------------	--------------

Other changes affecting Program and Policy programs:

Sections are added:

- Providing that the department may consider additional costs incurred by intermediate care facilities for the mentally retarded (ICF/MRs) serving medically fragile clients under 21 years of age. The Senate added a similar section but required the department to recognize these additional costs.
- Directing the department and developmental disabilities service providers to develop, during the 2005-06 interim, a plan for transferring appropriate individuals from the Developmental Center to community placements and to begin the transition during the 2005-07 biennium. The section also provides that the department report to the Legislative Council on its plan. The Senate also included a similar section.
- Changing the definition of specialized telecommunications equipment, the same as the Senate version.
- Requiring the department and the Indian Affairs Commission to collaborate to improve the coordination of tribal and state court activities relating to child support enforcement, the same as the Senate version.

- Providing for a Legislative Council study of the services provided by residential treatment centers and residential child care facilities and the appropriateness of the payments provided by the state for these services, the same as the Senate version.
- Authorizing the department to spend up to \$30,000 of the program and policy operating expenses line item for paying petitioning costs for individuals with developmental disabilities who have been referred for corporate guardianship. The Senate appropriated an additional \$30,000 from the general fund for these costs.
- Providing for a Legislative Council study of the Department of Human Services system of paying qualified service providers.
- Requiring the Department of Human Services to determine the effect of anticipated FMAP changes on the department's budget and programs and to report to the Legislative Council on the extent to which the department can provide for any additional general fund requirements related to FMAP changes within the department's budget and to identify programs to reduce or discontinue if the effect cannot be provided for within the department's budget.

The section added by the House providing for a Legislative Council study of long-term care is expanded to include the possibility of accessing additional federal funding through the intergovernmental transfer process.

House Bill No. 1012 - DHS - State Hospital - Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	HOUSE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES ¹	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	SENATE VERSION	COMPARISON TO SENATE
Traditional Secure	\$42,272,978 <u>5,455,560</u>	\$42,119,562 <u>5,430,860</u>	\$62,826 <u>(6,740)</u>	\$42,182,388 <u>5,424,120</u>	\$42,182,388 <u>5,424,120</u>	
Total all funds	\$47,728,538	\$47,550,422	\$56,086	\$47,606,508	\$47,606,508	\$0
Less estimated income	<u>15,610,871</u>	<u>15,676,878</u>	<u>(18,104)</u>	<u>15,658,774</u>	<u>15,658,774</u>	
General fund	\$32,117,667	\$31,873,544	\$74,190	\$31,947,734	\$31,947,734	\$0
FTE	424.01	424.01	0.00	424.01	424.01	0.00
		FTE	GENERAL FUND	ESTIMATED INCOME	TOTAL	

¹State Hospital - Conference Committee Changes:

Reduces recommended funding for health insurance			(\$35,810)	(\$18,104)	(\$53,914)
Adds funds for repairing and painting the State Hospital water tower, the same as the Senate version			110,000		110,000
Total Conference Committee Changes - State Hospital		0.00	\$74,190	(\$18,104)	\$56,086

House Bill No. 1012 - DHS - Developmental Center - Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	HOUSE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES ¹	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	SENATE VERSION	COMPARISON TO SENATE
Human service centers/institutions	\$43,046,377	\$42,224,603	(\$59,903)	\$42,164,700	\$42,164,700	
Total all funds	\$43,046,377	\$42,224,603	(\$59,903)	\$42,164,700	\$42,164,700	\$0
Less estimated income	<u>31,349,952</u>	<u>30,825,680</u>	<u>(44,383)</u>	<u>30,781,297</u>	<u>30,781,297</u>	
General fund	\$11,696,425	\$11,398,923	(\$15,520)	\$11,383,403	\$11,383,403	\$0
FTE	451.54	451.54	0.00	451.54	451.54	0.00
		FTE	GENERAL FUND	ESTIMATED INCOME	TOTAL	

¹Developmental Center - Conference Committee Changes:

Reduces recommended funding for health insurance			(\$15,520)	(\$44,383)	(\$59,903)
Total Conference Committee Changes - Developmental Center		0.00	(\$15,520)	(\$44,383)	(\$59,903)

House Bill No. 1012 - Human Service Centers - General Fund Summary

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	HOUSE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES ¹	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	SENATE VERSION	COMPARISON TO SENATE
DHS - Northwest HSC	\$3,688,546	\$3,634,208	(\$3,080)	\$3,631,128	\$3,631,128	
DHS - North Central HSC	8,163,022	8,020,684	(7,976)	8,012,708	8,012,708	

DHS - Lake Region HSC	4,974,499	4,887,533	(3,940)	4,883,593	4,883,593
DHS - Northeast HSC	8,484,532	8,306,292	(7,090)	8,299,202	8,299,202
DHS - Southeast HSC	10,148,529	9,880,827	(9,260)	9,871,567	9,871,567
DHS - South Central HSC	5,916,635	5,828,865	(4,890)	5,823,975	5,823,975
DHS - West Central HSC	9,025,416	8,846,855	(7,545)	8,839,310	8,839,310
DHS - Badlands HSC	<u>4,569,614</u>	<u>4,498,790</u>	<u>(4,480)</u>	<u>4,494,310</u>	<u>4,494,310</u>
Total general fund	\$54,970,793	\$53,904,054	(\$48,261)	\$53,855,793	\$53,855,793

\$0

House Bill No. 1012 - Human Service Centers - Other Funds Summary

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	HOUSE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES ¹	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	SENATE VERSION	COMPARISON TO SENATE
DHS - Northwest HSC	\$3,691,210	\$3,684,763	(\$3,160)	\$3,681,603	\$3,681,603	
DHS - North Central HSC	7,270,196	7,257,513	(7,000)	7,250,513	7,250,513	
DHS - Lake Region HSC	4,221,881	4,214,056	(3,798)	4,210,258	4,210,258	
DHS - Northeast HSC	12,211,610	12,190,660	(11,630)	12,179,030	12,179,030	
DHS - Southeast HSC	13,673,717	13,645,595	(13,204)	13,632,391	13,632,391	
DHS - South Central HSC	6,322,357	6,310,281	(5,968)	6,304,313	6,304,313	
DHS - West Central HSC	9,675,203	9,658,913	(8,180)	9,650,733	9,650,733	
DHS - Badlands HSC	<u>4,819,177</u>	<u>4,809,497</u>	<u>(5,254)</u>	<u>4,804,243</u>	<u>4,804,243</u>	
Total other funds	\$61,885,351	\$61,771,278	(\$58,194)	\$61,713,084	\$61,713,084	\$0

House Bill No. 1012 - Human Service Centers - All Funds Summary

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	HOUSE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES ¹	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	SENATE VERSION	COMPARISON TO SENATE
DHS - Northwest HSC	\$7,379,756	\$7,318,971	(\$6,240)	\$7,312,731	\$7,312,731	
DHS - North Central HSC	15,433,218	15,278,197	(14,976)	15,263,221	15,263,221	
DHS - Lake Region HSC	9,196,380	9,101,589	(7,738)	9,093,851	9,093,851	
DHS - Northeast HSC	20,696,142	20,496,952	(18,720)	20,478,232	20,478,232	
DHS - Southeast HSC	23,822,246	23,526,422	(22,464)	23,503,958	23,503,958	
DHS - South Central HSC	12,238,992	12,139,146	(10,858)	12,128,288	12,128,288	
DHS - West Central HSC	18,700,619	18,505,768	(15,725)	18,490,043	18,490,043	
DHS - Badlands HSC	<u>9,388,791</u>	<u>9,308,287</u>	<u>(9,734)</u>	<u>9,298,553</u>	<u>9,298,553</u>	
Total all funds	\$116,856,144	\$115,675,332	(\$106,455)	\$115,568,877	\$115,568,877	\$0
FTE	840.48	840.48	0.00	840.48	840.48	0.00

¹Reduces recommended funding for health insurance at the human service centers as follows:

FTE	GENERAL FUND	ESTIMATED INCOME	TOTAL
Northwest HSC	(\$3,080)	(\$3,160)	(\$6,240)
North Central HSC	(7,976)	(7,000)	(14,976)
Lake Region HSC	(3,940)	(3,798)	(7,738)
Northeast HSC	(7,090)	(11,630)	(18,720)
Southeast HSC	(9,260)	(13,204)	(22,464)
South Central HSC	(4,890)	(5,968)	(10,858)
West Central HSC	(7,545)	(8,180)	(15,725)
Badlands HSC	(4,480)	(5,254)	(9,734)
Total	(\$48,261)	(\$58,194)	(\$106,455)

Engrossed HB 1012 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. DELZER MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed HB 1012 be adopted.

REQUEST

REP. CONRAD REQUESTED a recorded roll call vote on the motion to adopt the conference committee report on Engrossed HB 1012, which request was granted.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the motion to adopt the conference committee report on Engrossed HB 1012, the roll was called and there were 57 YEAS, 33 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Bellew; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehning; Brusegaard; Carlisle; Carlson; Charging; Clark; Damschen; DeKrey; Delzer; Devlin; Dietrich; Dosch; Drovdal; Froseth; Galvin; Grande; Haas; Headland; Herbel; Horter; Iverson; Johnson, D.; Kasper; Keiser; Kempenich; Kingsbury; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Martinson; Meier, L.; Monson; Nelson; Nicholas; Norland; Pietsch; Pollert; Price; Rennerfeldt; Ruby; Sitte; Skarphol; Svedjan; Thoreson; Timm; Uglem; Vigesaa; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Wrangham; Speaker Klein

NAYS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Boe; Boucher; Conrad; Delmore; Ekstrom; Froelich; Glassheim; Gulleon; Hanson; Hawken; Hunsakor; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, S.; Kerzman; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Mueller; Nottestad; Onstad; Owens; Porter; Potter; Sandvig; Schmidt; Solberg; Thorpe; Williams

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Brandenburg; Maragos; Wald; Zaiser

The conference committee report on Engrossed HB 1012 was adopted.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1012: A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the department of human services; to provide an exception; to provide for a legislative council study; to provide an appropriation to the state department of health; to provide for a transfer to the general fund; to provide for the transfer of appropriation authority; to create and enact a new section to chapter 25-18 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to providing services to medically fragile children; to amend and reenact subsection 10 of section 54-44.8-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to telecommunications equipment; and to declare an emergency.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 66 YEAS, 24 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Bellew; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boehning; Brusegaard; Carlisle; Carlson; Charging; Clark; Conrad; Damschen; DeKrey; Delzer; Devlin; Dietrich; Dosch; Froelich; Froseth; Galvin; Grande; Haas; Hawken; Headland; Herbel; Horter; Iverson; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kempenich; Kingsbury; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Martinson; Meier, L.; Monson; Nelson; Nicholas; Norland; Nottestad; Owens; Pietsch; Pollert; Porter; Price; Rennerfeldt; Ruby; Sitte; Skarphol; Svedjan; Thoreson; Timm; Uglem; Vigesaa; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Wrangham; Speaker Klein

NAYS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Boe; Boucher; Delmore; Drovdal; Ekstrom; Glassheim; Gulleon; Hanson; Hunsakor; Kaldor; Kelsh, S.; Kerzman; Kroeber; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Mueller; Onstad; Potter; Sandvig; Schmidt; Solberg; Thorpe

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Brandenburg; Maragos; Wald; Zaiser

Engrossed HB 1012 passed, the title was agreed to, and the emergency clause was declared carried.

MOTION

REP. MONSON MOVED that the Speaker appoint Rep. Gulleason to replace Rep. Aarsvold on the conference committee on HB 1013, which motion prevailed.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

HB 1016, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Grindberg, Andrist, Lindaas and Reps. Carlson, Skarphol, Glassheim) recommends that the **SENATE RECEDE** from the Senate amendments on HJ pages 1564-1568, adopt amendments as follows, and place HB 1016 on the Seventh order:

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1564-1568 of the House Journal and pages 1262-1266 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1016 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 1, replace "division" with "department"

Page 1, line 2, replace "management" with "services" and replace "911 services" with "the department of emergency services"

Page 1, line 4, remove "and" and replace "require political subdivision financial participation in the state radio" with "provide a statement of legislative intent; to provide for a department of emergency services and an advisory committee; and to amend and reenact subdivision b of subsection 2 of section 28-32-01, subsection 3 of section 37-17.1-05, sections 37-17.1-06, 37-17.1-07, 37-17.1-07.1, 37-17.1-11, 37-17.1-13, 37-17.1-14, 37-17.1-14.1, 37-17.1-15, 37-17.1-22, and 37-17.1-23, subsection 2 of section 39-01-01, and sections 39-10-03.2, 54-23.2-01, 54-23.2-04.1, 54-23.2-09, 57-40.6-11, 57-40.6-12, 61-16.2-03, and 65-06-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the department of emergency services."

Page 1, remove line 5

Page 1, line 8, replace "division" with "department"

Page 1, line 9, replace "management" with "services"

Page 1, line 19, replace "division" with "department" and replace "management" with "services"

Page 1, line 21, replace "3,760,579" with "3,540,596"

Page 1, line 24, replace "13,062,469" with "13,062,469"

Page 1, after line 24, insert:

"Salaries and wages pool

213,493"

Page 2, line 1, replace "23,457,783" with "23,451,293"

Page 2, line 2, replace "19,733,090" with "19,730,151"

Page 2, line 3, replace "3,724,693" with "3,721,142"

Page 2, line 7, replace "division" with "department" and replace "management" with "services"

Page 2, line 10, replace "6,798,138" with "6,578,155"

Page 2, line 13, replace "46,962,054" with "46,962,054"

Page 2, after line 13, insert:

"Salaries and wages pool

213,493"

Page 2, line 14, replace "62,043,959" with "62,037,469"

Page 2, line 15, replace "56,950,231" with "56,947,292"

Page 2, line 16, replace "5,093,728" with "5,090,177"

Page 2, line 20, replace "division" with "department"

Page 2, line 21, replace "management" with "services"

Page 2, replace lines 22 through 29 with:

"SECTION 5. PERFORMANCE AUDIT - DEPARTMENT OF EMERGENCY SERVICES. The state auditor shall conduct a performance audit of the department of emergency services, including a review of fees collected for 911 services and the utilization of the fees during the biennium beginning July 1, 2005, and ending June 30, 2007. If possible, the audit should include options for the appropriate method of funding costs incurred by the department for providing 911 services, including the costs incurred by the department for answering calls from counties not under contract with the division for 911 services. The state auditor must be granted access to all county and county consortium records pertaining to 911 information. The results of the audit must be presented to the legislative audit and fiscal review committee and filed with the appropriations committee of the sixtieth legislative assembly."

Page 2, line 30, after **"COMMUNICATIONS"** insert **"SYSTEM"** and after **"AUTHORIZATION"** insert **"- BUDGET SECTION APPROVAL"**

Page 2, line 31, replace "division" with "department"

Page 3, line 1, replace "management" with "services"

Page 3, line 4, replace "only may be provided if the division has the prior written approval to repay any" with ", including interest, is to be repaid with federal funds made available from the United States department of homeland security."

Page 3, remove line 5

Page 3, line 6, remove "department of homeland security." and replace "division" with "department"

Page 3, line 9, replace "division" with "department" and replace "management" with "services"

Page 3, line 10, replace "division's" with "department's"

Page 3, line 13, replace "division" with "department"

Page 3, line 14, remove "an appropriate committee of"

Page 3, line 16, replace "assessment" with "assessments" and replace "division" with "department and political subdivisions"

Page 3, replace lines 18 through 22 with:

"SECTION 8. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - STATE RADIO COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM MIGRATION PROJECT - POLITICAL SUBDIVISION FINANCIAL PARTICIPATION. It is the intent of the fifty-ninth legislative assembly that political subdivisions spend a portion of the federal homeland security funding allocations on costs associated with the migration of the state radio communications system from analog to digital.

SECTION 9. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - STATE RADIO COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM MIGRATION PROJECT. It is the intent of the fifty-ninth legislative assembly that the office of management and budget address all remaining costs associated with the migration of the state radio communications system from analog to digital in the department's budget request for the 2007-09 biennium.

SECTION 10. SALARIES AND WAGES POOL - BUDGET SECTION APPROVAL. The department, in conjunction with the North Dakota human resource management services division of the office of management and budget, shall reevaluate job classifications impacted by the department's reorganization. The department shall report the positions affected by the department's reorganization and a detailed justification of any prior salary increases and a recommendation and analysis of any proposed salary increases or decreases to the budget section. The sum of \$213,493,

or so much of the sum as may be necessary, included in the salaries and wages pool line item in section 3 of this Act, is available to the department for providing salary increases to positions affected by the reorganization subject to budget section approval.

SECTION 11. AMENDMENT. Subdivision b of subsection 2 of section 28-32-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

- b. The adjutant general with respect to the ~~division of emergency management~~ department of emergency services.

SECTION 12. Department of emergency services.The department of emergency services consists of a division of state radio and a division of homeland security. The adjutant general is the director of the department. The adjutant general shall provide for shared administration of both divisions. The division of homeland security consists of the state operations center section, the disaster recovery section, and the homeland security section. The adjutant general shall appoint a separate director of each division. A division director serves at the pleasure of the adjutant general. The adjutant general shall fix the compensation of a division director within limits of legislative appropriation.

SECTION 13. Advisory committee to department of emergency services. The adjutant general shall create one or more advisory committees to the department of emergency services. An advisory committee may consist of not more than eleven members representing local and state interests in the department. Members must be appointed to four-year staggered terms. An advisory committee shall advise the department regarding collaboration with political subdivisions, and each member of an advisory committee shall report to the local interest each member represents concerning recommendations approved by the committee. Each member of the advisory committee is entitled to be paid sixty-two dollars and fifty cents per day for time spent in attendance at meetings and is entitled to be reimbursed for the member's actual and necessary expenses at the rates and in the manner provided by law for other state officers. The compensation and expenses must be paid out of department appropriations.

SECTION 14. AMENDMENT. Subsection 3 of section 37-17.1-05 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

3. A disaster or emergency must be declared by executive order or proclamation of the governor if the governor determines a disaster has occurred or a state of emergency exists. The state of disaster or emergency shall continue until the governor determines that the threat of an emergency has passed or the disaster has been dealt with to the extent that emergency conditions no longer exist. The legislative assembly by concurrent resolution may terminate a state of disaster or emergency at any time. All executive orders or proclamations issued under this subsection must indicate the nature of the disaster or emergency, the area or areas threatened, the conditions which have brought it about or which make possible termination of the state of disaster or emergency. An executive order or proclamation must be disseminated promptly by means calculated to bring its contents to the attention of the general public, unless the circumstances attendant upon the disaster or emergency prevent or impede such dissemination, and it must be promptly filed with the ~~division of emergency management~~ department of emergency services, the secretary of state, and the county or city auditor of the jurisdictions affected.

SECTION 15. AMENDMENT. Section 37-17.1-06 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

37-17.1-06. State division of ~~emergency management~~ homeland security.

1. ~~A The division of emergency management is hereby established in the office of the adjutant general. The division shall have a director appointed by, and to serve at the pleasure of, the adjutant general and the director's compensation must be fixed by the adjutant general within the legislative appropriations. The division shall~~ homeland security, must have other professional, technical, secretarial, and clerical employees as necessary for the performance of its functions. The director of the division shall fix the compensation of the staff in conformity with state merit system regulations and may make such expenditures within the appropriations therefor, or

from other funds made available to the director for purposes of emergency management, as may be necessary to carry out the purposes of this chapter.

2. The division of ~~emergency management~~ homeland security shall prepare and maintain a state disaster plan and keep it current, which plan may include provisions for:
 - a. Averting or minimizing the injury and damage caused by disasters or emergencies.
 - b. Prompt and effective response to a disaster or emergency.
 - c. Emergency relief.
 - d. Identification of areas particularly vulnerable to a disaster or emergency.
 - e. Recommendations for zoning, building, and other land use controls, safety measures for securing mobile homes or other nonpermanent or semipermanent structures, and other mitigation and preparedness measures.
 - f. Assistance to local officials in developing and maintaining local emergency management systems.
 - g. Authorization and procedures for the erection or other construction of temporary works designed to protect against or mitigate danger, damage, or loss from any disaster or emergency.
 - h. Preparation and distribution of emergency management assistance program guidance to the appropriate state and local officials.
 - i. Organization of manpower and chains of command.
 - j. Coordination of federal, state, and local emergency management activities.
 - k. Coordination of state disaster or emergency operations plans with the disaster or emergency plans of the federal government.
 - l. Other necessary matters.
3. The division of ~~emergency management~~ homeland security shall take an integral part in the development and revision of local disaster or emergency operations plans prepared under section 37-17.1-07. To this end it shall employ or otherwise secure the services of professional and technical personnel capable of providing expert assistance to local emergency management organizations. These personnel shall consult with local emergency management organizations on a regularly scheduled basis and shall make field examinations of the areas, circumstances, and conditions to which particular local disaster or emergency plans are intended to apply and may suggest or require revisions.
4. In preparing and revising state disaster or emergency plans, the division of ~~emergency management~~ homeland security shall seek the advice and assistance of local government, business, labor, industry, agriculture, civic, and volunteer organizations and community leaders. In advising local emergency management organizations, the division shall encourage them also to seek advice from these sources.
5. State disaster or emergency plans or any parts thereof have the force of law upon implementation by the governor.
6. The division of ~~emergency management~~ homeland security shall:
 - a. Coordinate the procurement and prepositioning of supplies, materials, and equipment for disaster or emergency operations.

- b. Provide guidance and standards for local disaster or emergency operational plans.
- c. Periodically review local disaster or emergency operational plans.
- d. Coordinate state or state and federal assistance to local emergency management organizations.
- e. Establish and operate or assist local emergency management organizations to establish and operate training programs and programs for emergency public information.
- f. Make surveys of industries, resources, and facilities, within the state, both public and private, as are necessary to carry out the purposes of this chapter. The use of sensitive and proprietary logistical data submitted to the state in confidence by individual industries and suppliers must be accorded full confidentiality and will be released only in aggregate form.
- g. Plan and make arrangements for the availability and use of any private facilities, services, and property, and, if necessary and if in fact used, coordinate payment for that use under terms and conditions agreed upon.
- h. Establish access to a register of persons with types of training and skills important in mitigation, preparedness, response, and recovery.
- i. Establish access to a register of equipment and facilities available for use in a disaster or emergency.
- j. Prepare, for issuance by the governor, executive orders, proclamations, and guidance as necessary or appropriate in managing a disaster or emergency.
- k. Coordinate with the federal government and any public or private agency or entity in achieving any purpose of this chapter and in implementing programs for disaster mitigation, preparation, response, and recovery.
- l. Be the state search and rescue coordinating agency, establish access to a register of search and rescue equipment and personnel in the state, and plan for its effective utilization in carrying out the search for and rescue of persons when no violation of criminal laws exists.
- m. Do other things necessary, incidental, or appropriate for the implementation of this chapter.

SECTION 16. AMENDMENT. Section 37-17.1-07 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

37-17.1-07. Local emergency management organizations.

- 1. All areas of the state are within the jurisdiction of and must be served by the division of ~~emergency management~~ homeland security and by a local emergency management organization.
- 2. Each county shall maintain an emergency management organization which serves the entire county.
- 3. Each city shall provide an emergency management organization of its own, or it shall participate in the countywide emergency management organization. Each governing board of a city shall make its determination on the basis of the city's emergency management requirements, hazards, capabilities, and resources. The division of ~~emergency management~~ homeland security shall publish and keep current a list of cities desiring to have an emergency management organization of their own.
- 4. The mayor of a city or chairman of the board of county commissioners shall notify the division of ~~emergency management~~ homeland security of the manner in which the city or county is providing or securing emergency

management activities, identify the person who will coordinate the activities of the local emergency management organization, and furnish additional information relating thereto as the division requires.

5. Each local emergency management organization shall prepare and keep current a local disaster or emergency operational plan for its area.
6. The local emergency management organization shall prepare and distribute to all appropriate officials in written form a clear and complete statement of the disaster or emergency responsibilities of their local agencies and officials.

SECTION 17. AMENDMENT. Section 37-17.1-07.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

37-17.1-07.1. Hazardous chemicals preparedness and response program.

1. ~~Program components:~~

- a. ~~State emergency response commission.~~ The governor shall appoint members of the state emergency response commission to carry out the commission's responsibilities as outlined in Public Law 99-499, 42 U.S.C. 11001, et seq., also referred to as SARA title III, and the responsibilities of the commission members as outlined in the North Dakota emergency operations plan.
- b. ~~Program development.~~ In conjunction with the state emergency response commission, the local emergency planning committees, and the local emergency management organizations, the division of ~~emergency management~~ homeland security shall coordinate the development and maintenance of a state hazardous chemicals preparedness and response program.
- c. ~~Chairperson.~~ The director of the division of ~~emergency management~~ homeland security shall serve as the ~~chairperson~~ chairman of the state emergency response commission. In the absence of the ~~chairperson~~ chairman, the designated vice ~~chairperson~~ chairman shall serve as ~~chairperson~~ chairman. The ~~chairperson~~ chairman shall recognize the assignment of representatives to the commission who are designated through a delegation of authority by a member. The ~~chairperson~~ chairman shall designate a commission secretary, solely for the purpose of documenting and distributing clerical proceedings, from the staff of the division of ~~emergency management~~ homeland security.
- d. ~~Facility reporting.~~ For the purpose of complying with the reporting requirements set forth in sections 302, 304, 311, 312, and 313 of Public Law 99-499, 42 U.S.C. 11001, et seq., also referred to as SARA title III, the owner and operator of any facility, as defined in SARA title III, shall submit those reports to the North Dakota division of ~~emergency management~~ homeland security as required by SARA title III, which shall establish and maintain the state repository for these reports.

2. ~~Establishment of funds:~~

- a. ~~State hazardous chemicals preparedness and response fund.~~ There is created in the state treasury a nonlapsing restricted account to be known as a state hazardous chemicals preparedness and response fund. The fund consists of revenue collected from the state hazardous chemical fee system and funds appropriated by the general assembly. Moneys in the fund shall be appropriated biennially to the division of ~~emergency management~~ homeland security for carrying out the purposes, goals, and objectives of SARA title III, and the state hazardous chemicals preparedness and response program.
- b. ~~County hazardous chemicals preparedness and response account.~~ The county treasurer of each county shall establish a nonlapsing restricted account, to be known as the county hazardous chemicals

preparedness and response account. The county hazardous chemicals preparedness and response account consists of revenue from the state hazardous chemicals fee system, county, federal or state funds, grants, and any private donations provided to finance the county hazardous chemicals preparedness and response program.

- c. ~~Facility fee system.~~ Each owner and operator of a facility, as defined in SARA title III, shall pay an annual hazardous chemicals fee to the division of ~~emergency management~~ homeland security by March first of each year. The fee is twenty-five dollars for each chemical within the meaning of 40 CFR 355.20 or its successor which is required under section 312 of SARA, title III, to be listed on the hazardous chemical inventory form (tier II) which the owner or operator must submit to the division. The federal requirements must be used for completing the tier II form, including the threshold amounts, as outlined in 40 CFR 370.20. The maximum fee for a facility under this section is one hundred fifty dollars. The division of ~~emergency management~~ homeland security shall transfer to the county hazardous chemicals preparedness and response account one-half of the funds collected from the state's hazardous chemicals fee system.
- d. ~~Exemptions.~~ The owners or operators of family farm enterprises that are not engaged in the retail or wholesale of hazardous chemicals and facilities owned by the state or local governments are exempt from the fee under subdivision c. For purposes of this section, the terms "family farm" and "farmer" have the same meaning as set forth in section 6-09.11-01.
- e. ~~Accept funding.~~ The state and county governments are authorized to accept and may deposit grants, gifts, and federal funds into the hazardous chemicals preparedness and response fund and accounts for the purpose of carrying out the hazardous chemicals preparedness and response program.
- f. ~~Definition.~~ "Hazardous chemical" means as defined in 40 CFR 355.20 and 29 CFR 1910.1200.
- g. ~~City fee system.~~ The state hazardous chemicals fee system does not supersede a city fee system for hazardous chemicals.
- 3. ~~Recovery of response costs.~~
 - a. ~~General rule.~~ A person who causes a release, as defined in 40 CFR 355.20, of a hazardous chemical in excess of the reportable quantity of that chemical, as defined in 40 CFR 355.20, is liable for the response costs incurred by state or local hazardous chemical response personnel. The state agency, local agency, volunteer organization, or hazardous chemical response personnel, as identified in the state or local emergency operations plan, which undertakes a response action may recover those response costs in an action brought before a court of competent jurisdiction. If more than one jurisdiction, organization, or agency incurs response costs for the same hazardous chemical release or incident, those hazardous chemical response jurisdictions, agencies, organizations, or personnel may file a joint action and may designate one entity to represent the others in the action.
 - b. ~~Amount.~~ In the action to recover reasonable and necessary response costs, state agencies, local agencies, or volunteer organizations may include operational, administrative, personnel, and legal costs incurred from its initial response action up to the time that it recovers its cost. Reasonable and necessary costs are those additional costs incurred that are a result of the responsible party's failure or inability to implement or initiate the necessary actions to protect life, property, and the environment.
- 4. ~~Penalties and fines.~~
 - a. ~~Civil fines.~~ A person who violates any of the reporting, planning, or notification requirements outlined in the provisions of the Emergency

Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act of 1986 [title III of Public Law 99-499, 42 U.S.C. 11001 et seq.], or fails to pay a state hazardous chemicals fee is subject to a civil fine of not more than fifteen thousand dollars for each separate offense. For purposes of this subdivision, each day of continued violation constitutes a separate offense. All civil fines collected under this subdivision must be deposited in the state general fund. The state and its political subdivisions and employees of the state or a political subdivision acting within the scope of their employment are not subject to the civil fines established in this subdivision.

- b. ~~Criminal penalty.~~ Any person who knowingly falsifies information or who intentionally obstructs or impairs, by force, violence, physical interference, or obstacle, a representative of state or local government or state or local hazardous chemicals response personnel attempting to perform duties and functions in state or local emergency operations plans or complying with Public Law 99-499, SARA title III, is guilty of a class B misdemeanor. The state and its political subdivisions and employees of the state or a political subdivision acting within the scope of their employment are not subject to the penalty established in this subdivision.

5. ~~Enforcement.~~

- a. If the director of the division of ~~emergency management~~ homeland security determines that a violation of this chapter has occurred, the director shall make all evidence available to the attorney general for use in any remedial action the attorney general's office determines appropriate, including injunctive relief.
- b. Nothing in this section may be construed to deny use of the remedies authorized under chapter 32-40.

SECTION 18. AMENDMENT. Section 37-17.1-11 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

37-17.1-11. Disaster or emergency mitigation.

1. In addition to disaster or emergency mitigation measures as included in the state and local disaster or emergency operational plans, the governor shall consider, on a continuing basis, steps that could be taken to mitigate or reduce the harmful consequences of disasters or emergencies. At the governor's direction, and pursuant to any other authority and capability they have, state agencies charged with responsibilities in connection with floodplain management, stream encroachment and flow regulation, weather modification, fire prevention and control, air quality, public works, land use and land use planning, and construction standards, shall make studies of disaster or emergency mitigation-related matters. The governor, from time to time, shall make recommendations to the legislative assembly, local governments, and other appropriate public and private entities as may facilitate measures for mitigation or reduction of the harmful consequences of disasters or emergencies.
2. The North Dakota state engineer and the water commission, in conjunction with the division of ~~emergency management~~ homeland security, shall keep land uses and construction of structures and other facilities under continuing study and identify areas which are particularly susceptible to severe land shifting, subsidence, flood, or other catastrophic occurrence. The studies under this subsection must concentrate on means of reducing or avoiding the dangers caused by this occurrence or the consequences thereof.
3. If the division of ~~emergency management~~ homeland security determines, on the basis of the studies or other competent evidence, that an area is susceptible to a disaster of catastrophic proportions without adequate warning; existing building standards and land use controls in that area are inadequate and could add substantially to the magnitude of the disaster or emergency; and changes in zoning regulations, other land use regulations, or building requirements are needed in order to further the purposes of this section, it shall specify the essential changes to the governor. If the

governor, upon review of the determination, finds after public hearing, that the changes are essential, the governor shall so recommend to the agencies or local governments with jurisdiction over that area and subject matter. If no action or insufficient action pursuant to the governor's recommendations is taken within the time specified by the governor, the governor shall so inform the legislative assembly and request legislative action appropriate to mitigate the impact of the disaster or emergency.

4. The governor, at the same time that the governor makes recommendations pursuant to subsection 3, may suspend the standard or control which the governor finds to be inadequate to protect the public safety and by regulation place a new standard or control in effect. The new standard or control remains in effect until rejected by concurrent resolution of both houses of the legislative assembly or amended by the governor. During the time it is in effect, the standard or control contained in the governor's regulation must be administered and given full effect by all relevant regulatory agencies of the state and local governments to which it applies. The governor's action is subject to judicial review in accordance with chapter 28-32 but is not subject to temporary stay pending litigation.

SECTION 19. AMENDMENT. Section 37-17.1-13 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

37-17.1-13. Communications. The division of ~~emergency management~~ homeland security shall ascertain what means exist for rapid and efficient communications in times of a disaster or emergency. The division shall consider the desirability of supplementing these communications resources or of integrating them into a comprehensive state or state and federal telecommunications or other communications system or network, including the military installations. In studying the character and feasibility of any system or its several parts, the division shall evaluate the possibility of multipurpose use thereof for general state and local governmental purposes. The division shall make recommendations to the governor as appropriate.

SECTION 20. AMENDMENT. Section 37-17.1-14 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

37-17.1-14. Mutual aid.

1. Counties and cities must be encouraged and assisted by the division of ~~emergency management~~ homeland security to conclude suitable arrangements for furnishing mutual aid in emergency management. The arrangements must include provision of aid by persons and units in public employ.
2. In review of local disaster or emergency plans, the division of ~~emergency management~~ homeland security shall consider whether they contain adequate provisions for the rendering and receipt of mutual aid.

SECTION 21. AMENDMENT. Section 37-17.1-14.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

37-17.1-14.1. Mutual aid - Cooperation.

1. The division of ~~emergency management~~ homeland security shall encourage and assist political subdivisions to enter mutual aid agreements with other public and private agencies within the state for reciprocal aid and assistance in responding to and recovering from actual and potential disasters or emergencies.
2. In reviewing emergency operations plans and programs of political subdivisions, the division of ~~emergency management~~ homeland security shall consider whether ~~they~~ the plans and programs contain adequate provisions for mutual aid.
3. Local emergency management organizations may assist in negotiation of mutual aid agreements between the governor and an adjoining state or province or a political subdivision of an adjoining state or province and shall carry out arrangements of any such agreements relating to the local political subdivision.

SECTION 22. AMENDMENT. Section 37-17.1-15 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

37-17.1-15. Weather modification. The division of ~~emergency management~~ homeland security shall keep continuously apprised of weather conditions which present danger of precipitation or other climatic activity severe enough to constitute a disaster. If the division determines that precipitation resulting from weather modification operations, either by itself or in conjunction with other precipitation or climatic conditions or activity, would create or contribute to the severity of a disaster, ~~it the division~~ shall direct the officer or agency empowered to issue permits for weather modification operations to suspend the issuance of the permits. ~~Thereupon, no~~ No permits may be issued until the division informs the officer or agency that the danger has passed.

SECTION 23. AMENDMENT. Section 37-17.1-22 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

37-17.1-22. Disaster or emergency response and recovery costs. Whenever the governor declares a state of disaster or emergency in accordance with section 37-17.1-05, or when the governor enters into an agreement with the federal government following a disaster or emergency declared by the president of the United States, the director of the division of ~~emergency management~~ homeland security shall determine and record the costs of the state response and recovery operations in accordance with an agreement with the federal government or in accordance with procedures established by the governor in the case of a state-declared disaster or emergency. Immediately following the response or recovery operations, or prior thereto if ~~deemed~~ determined necessary by the governor, the governor shall make application to the state emergency commission for a grant of funds in an amount equal to the response and recovery costs of the state. Notwithstanding other provisions of chapter 54-16, it must be conclusively presumed upon receipt by the emergency commission of such application from the governor that a disaster or emergency exists, and ~~such~~ the commission ~~shall~~ immediately shall grant and direct the transfer to the department of the governor's designated representative of an amount equal to that certified in such application by the governor.

SECTION 24. AMENDMENT. Section 37-17.1-23 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

37-17.1-23. Disaster or emergency recovery funding - Loan authorization.

1. When approved by the emergency commission, the division of ~~emergency management~~ homeland security is authorized to borrow from the Bank of North Dakota, to match federal funds under the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Emergency Assistance Act [Public Law 93-288, as amended]. In addition to the principal repayment, the Bank of North Dakota shall receive interest on the loan at a rate equal to other state agency borrowings. On behalf of the state, the division of ~~emergency management~~ homeland security shall administer the disaster or emergency recovery program according to state procedures based on federal laws or regulations. After a county or group of counties have been declared a major disaster or emergency area by the president, the division shall submit a request to the emergency commission for:
 - ~~4-~~ a. Approval to make an application for a loan from the Bank of North Dakota;
 - ~~2-~~ b. Approval for additional personnel required to perform the anticipated recovery activities; and
 - ~~3-~~ c. Authority to spend additional state and federal funds for the recovery program.
2. If the request is acceptable, the emergency commission shall approve the request and issue a notice of its action to the division, Bank of North Dakota, and the office of management and budget. The division shall keep the emergency commission apprised of the progress of the recovery operation and submit a final report upon completion of the project. The emergency commission is responsible to repay any loan, including accrued interest, from the Bank of North Dakota which is provided under this section. If at the end of the biennium a balance exists on the loan, the

emergency commission shall request the legislative assembly for a deficiency appropriation to repay the loan.

SECTION 25. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 39-01-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

2. Authorized emergency vehicles:
 - a. Class A authorized emergency vehicles means:
 - (1) Vehicles of a governmentally owned fire department.
 - (2) Vehicles when operated by or under the control of a police officer having authority to enforce the provisions of this title or by a salaried employee of a municipal police department within the municipality or by a sheriff or deputy sheriff not including special deputy sheriffs, or by the director of the department of corrections and rehabilitation and the director's authorized agents who have successfully completed training in the operation of class A authorized emergency vehicles.
 - (3) Vehicles clearly identifiable as property of the department of corrections and rehabilitation when operated or under the control of the director of the department of corrections and rehabilitation.
 - (4) Ambulances.
 - (5) Vehicles operated by or under the control of the director, district deputy director, or a district deputy game warden of the game and fish department.
 - (6) Vehicles owned or leased by the United States and used for law enforcement purposes.
 - (7) Vehicles designated for the use of the adjutant general or assistant adjutant general in cases of emergency.
 - (8) Vehicles operated by or under the control of the director of the parks and recreation department.
 - (9) Vehicles operated by or under the control of a licensed railroad police officer and used for law enforcement purposes.
 - b. Class B authorized emergency vehicles means wreckers and such other emergency vehicles as are authorized by the local authorities.
 - c. Class C authorized emergency vehicles means:
 - (1) Vehicles authorized by the state and division of homeland security or local division of emergency management organizations.
 - (2) Vehicles used by volunteer firefighters while performing their assigned disaster and emergency responsibilities.
 - (3) Vehicles, other than ambulances, used by emergency medical services personnel.

SECTION 26. AMENDMENT. Section 39-10-03.2 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

39-10-03.2. Class C authorized emergency vehicles. All class B specifications apply to class C authorized emergency vehicles except that a rotating blue flashing light must be displayed in place of an amber light as provided in section 39-10-03.1. With respect to vehicles used by state and local disaster emergency services personnel, the division of ~~emergency management~~ homeland security is responsible for adopting rules for the use of flashing blue lights in accordance with chapter 28-32.

SECTION 27. AMENDMENT. Section 54-23.2-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

54-23.2-01. Definitions. ~~Wherever the word "director" is hereinafter used, it shall mean the director of the office of management and budget. The word "system" hereinafter used shall mean~~ As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires:

1. "Director" means the director of the division of state radio.
2. "Division" means the division of state radio of the department of emergency services.
3. "System" means the state radio broadcasting system.

SECTION 28. AMENDMENT. Section 54-23.2-04.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

54-23.2-04.1. Lost or runaway children and missing persons. ~~The state radio department~~ division shall:

1. Establish and maintain a statewide file system for the purpose of effecting an immediate law enforcement response to reports of lost or runaway children and missing persons. ~~The state radio department shall implement~~
2. Implement a data exchange system to compile, to maintain, and to make available for dissemination to North Dakota and to out-of-state law enforcement agencies, descriptive information ~~which that~~ can assist appropriate agencies in recovering lost or runaway children and missing persons.
2. 3. Establish contacts and exchange information regarding lost or runaway children and missing persons with the national crime information center.
3. 4. Notify all enforcement agencies that reports of lost or runaway children and missing persons ~~shall~~ must be entered as soon as the minimum level of data specified by the ~~state radio department~~ division is available to the reporting agency and that no waiting period for entry of such data exists. If the enforcement agency is unable to enter the data, the ~~state radio department shall~~ division immediately upon notification shall enter the information into the national crime information center file.
4. 5. Compile and retain information regarding lost or runaway children or missing persons in a separate file, in a manner that allows the information to be used by law enforcement and other agencies ~~deemed considered~~ appropriate by the ~~state radio department~~ division, for investigative purposes. The enforcement agency is responsible for maintaining the disposition of the case and ~~shall~~ periodically shall review the case with the reporting party and the ~~state radio department~~ division to ensure all available information is included and to determine the current status of the case.
5. 6. Provide prompt confirmation of the receipt and entry of the lost or runaway children and missing persons report into the file system to the enforcement agency providing the report or to the parent, guardian, or identified family member as provided in subsection ~~6~~ 7.
6. 7. Allow any parent, guardian, or identified family member to submit a missing persons report to the ~~state radio department~~ division which will be included in the ~~state radio department~~ division file system and transmitted to the national crime information center, if they are unable to receive services from the local law enforcement agency.
7. 8. Compile and maintain a historical data repository relating to missing persons for all of the following purposes:
 - a. To develop and improve techniques utilized by law enforcement agencies when responding to reports of missing persons.

- b. To provide a factual and statistical base for research that which would address the problem of lost or runaway children and missing persons.

SECTION 29. AMENDMENT. Section 54-23.2-09 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

54-23.2-09. Mobile data terminal and 911 service fees. ~~State radio communications~~

1. The division shall establish and charge fees to provide mobile data terminal service to interested local law enforcement agencies. The fees must be based on actual costs incurred by ~~state radio communications~~ the division for providing the service.

~~State radio communications~~

2. The division may provide 911 services to a political subdivision with a population of fewer than twenty thousand and shall charge at least twenty cents per telephone access line and wireless access line for 911 services provided to political subdivisions. The fee for 911 wireless services must be charged to and paid by the political subdivision receiving services from ~~state radio communications~~ the division under this section from and after the date of the agreement entered into by the political subdivision or its designee under section 57-40.6-05, whether the date of that agreement is before or after April 4, 2003. Each county currently receiving 911 services from ~~state radio communications~~ the division shall abide by the standards established by law.

SECTION 30. AMENDMENT. Section 57-40.6-11 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

57-40.6-11. Annual report to legislative council. ~~State radio~~ The division of state radio, in cooperation with entities affected by this section and section 57-40.6-10, shall facilitate the review of emergency 911 telephone system standards and guidelines and shall report annually to the legislative council on the operation of and any recommended changes in the standards and guidelines.

SECTION 31. AMENDMENT. Section 57-40.6-12 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

57-40.6-12. Reports of coordination of public safety answering points coverage. The governing body of a city or county, which adopted a fee on telephone exchange access service and wireless service under this chapter, shall make an annual report of the income, expenditures, and status of its emergency services communication system. The annual report must be submitted to ~~the state radio~~ the division of state radio and to the public safety answering points coordinating committee. The committee is composed of three members, one appointed by the North Dakota 911 association, one appointed by the North Dakota association of counties, and one appointed by the ~~office of management and budget~~ adjutant general to represent the ~~state radio~~ division of state radio. The public safety answering points coordinating committee shall file its report with the legislative council by November first of each even-numbered year.

SECTION 32. AMENDMENT. Section 61-16.2-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

61-16.2-03. Duties of state engineer. The state engineer shall:

1. Collect and distribute information relating to flooding and floodplain management.
2. Coordinate local, state, and federal floodplain management activities to the greatest extent possible, and encourage appropriate federal agencies to make their flood control planning data available to communities and districts for planning purposes, in order to allow adequate local participation in the planning process and in the selection of desirable alternatives.
3. Assist communities and districts in their floodplain management activities within the limits of available appropriations and personnel in cooperation with the division of ~~emergency management~~ homeland security.

4. Do all other things, within lawful authority, which are necessary or desirable to manage the floodplains for uses compatible with the preservation of the capacity of the floodplain to carry and discharge the base flood. In cooperation with communities and districts, the state engineer shall conduct, whenever possible, periodic inspections to determine the effectiveness of local floodplain management programs, including an evaluation of the enforcement of and compliance with local floodplain management ordinances.

SECTION 33. AMENDMENT. Section 65-06-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

65-06-01. Volunteer firefighter, emergency or disaster volunteer, community emergency response team member, in training defined. The term "volunteer firefighter" means any active member of an organized volunteer fire department of this state and any other individual performing services as a volunteer firefighter for a municipality at the request of the chief or other individual in command of the fire department of that municipality or of any other officer of that municipality having authority to demand service as a firefighter. Firefighters who are paid a regular wage or stipend by the municipality for serving as a firefighter, or whose entire time is devoted to service as a firefighter for the municipality, for the purpose of this chapter, are not volunteer firefighters.

The term "emergency or disaster volunteer" means any individual serving without remuneration who is actively engaged in training to qualify as a disaster emergency worker or is responding to a hazard, emergency disaster, or enemy attack on this country, and who is registered with the disaster emergency organization of a municipality, which has been officially recognized by the director of the state division of ~~emergency management~~ homeland security.

The term "in training" means only those periods of time, during which an emergency or disaster volunteer is receiving instruction, or is engaged in exercises or operations, in preparation for qualification as a disaster emergency worker in the event of a hazard, emergency, disaster, or enemy attack on this country.

The term "community emergency response team member" means an individual registered as a community emergency response team member with the appropriate authority. For purposes of this chapter, a community emergency response team member is acting as a community emergency response team member only when the individual is receiving approved community emergency response team training or is acting as a member of a community emergency response team in an emergency or disaster.

Upon request of the organization, the disaster emergency organization of a municipality shall provide the organization with its roster of registered community emergency response team members.

The term "municipality" when used in reference to emergency or disaster volunteer means the state, cities, counties, municipalities, districts, or any other geographical entity of this state. This definition is not in any way intended to alter any interpretation or ruling in regard to the use of the term "municipality" when used in reference to volunteer firefighters."

Renumber accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

House Bill No. 1016 - Department of Emergency Services - Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	HOUSE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	SENATE VERSION	COMPARISON TO SENATE
Salaries and wages	\$6,821,939	\$6,798,138	(\$219,983)	\$6,578,155	\$6,578,155	
Operating expenses	3,325,844	3,325,844		3,325,844	3,325,844	
Capital assets	4,957,923	4,957,923		4,957,923	4,957,923	
Grants	46,962,054	46,962,054		46,962,054	46,962,054	
Salaries and wages pool			213,493	213,493		\$213,493
Loan proceeds			900,000	900,000		900,000
Total all funds	\$62,067,760	\$62,043,959	\$893,510	\$62,937,469	\$61,823,976	\$1,113,493
Less estimated income	<u>56,961,521</u>	<u>56,950,231</u>	<u>897,061</u>	<u>57,847,292</u>	<u>56,736,776</u>	<u>1,110,516</u>
General fund	\$5,106,239	\$5,093,728	(\$3,551)	\$5,090,177	\$5,087,200	\$2,977

FTE	54.00	54.00	0.00	54.00	54.00	0.00
-----	-------	-------	------	-------	-------	------

Dept. 512 - Department of Emergency Services - Detail of Conference Committee Changes

	REDUCES RECOMMENDED FUNDING FOR HEALTH INSURANCE	REDUCES FUNDING FOR SALARIES AND WAGES AND CREATES A SALARIES AND WAGES POOL ¹	AUTHORIZES THE BORROWING OF FUNDS ²	TOTAL CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES
Salaries and wages	(\$6,490)	(\$213,493)		(\$219,983)
Operating expenses				
Capital assets				
Grants				
Salaries and wages pool		213,493		213,493
Loan proceeds			<u>\$900,000</u>	<u>900,000</u>
Total all funds	(\$6,490)	\$0	\$900,000	\$893,510
Less estimated income	<u>(2,939)</u>		<u>900,000</u>	<u>897,061</u>
General fund	(\$3,551)	\$0	\$0	(\$3,551)
FTE	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

¹ The conference committee agreed to create a salaries and wages pool of \$213,493, of which \$2,977 is from the general fund, with funding from the salaries and wages line item. The funding is available to the department for providing salary increases to positions affected by the department's reorganization subject to approval by the Budget Section. The Senate had reduced funding for salaries and wages by \$213,493, of which \$2,977 is from the general fund, to remove funding relating to continuing salary increases provided to Division of Emergency Management employees during the 2003-05 biennium.

² The conference committee agreed with the House amendment to authorized the department to borrow up to \$900,000 from the Bank of North Dakota for expenses associated with the migration of the State Radio Communications system from analog to digital. The loan, including accrued interest, is to be repaid with federal funds made available from the United States Department of Homeland Security. The Senate had removed this borrowing authority from the bill.

This amendment also:

- Revises Section 5 of the engrossed bill added by the House to broaden the scope of the audit to the entire department, including fees collected for 911 services and the utilization of such fees. These changes were also made by the Senate.
- Revises Section 8 of the engrossed bill added by the House to provide legislative intent that political subdivisions spend a portion of federal homeland security funding allocations on costs associated with the migration of the State Radio Communications system from analog to digital instead of requiring political subdivisions to spend a portion of federal homeland security funding allocations on the migration. The Senate had removed this section from the bill.
- Adds a section to the bill providing legislative intent that the Office of Management and Budget address all remaining costs associated with the State Radio Communications system migration project in the department's budget request for the 2007-09 biennium. This section was not included in either the House or the Senate version of the bill.
- Provides for the reorganization of the Division of Emergency Management to the Department of Emergency Services, including a division of state radio and a division of homeland security, and the establishment of an advisory committee to the department. The Senate had reorganized the agency into the Division of Emergency Management and the Division of Homeland Security and State Radio Communications.

Engrossed HB 1016 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. CARLSON MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed HB 1016 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed HB 1016, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1016: A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the department of emergency services; to provide for a performance audit of the department of emergency services; to provide authorization for a loan from the Bank of North Dakota; to provide for a report to the legislative council; to provide a statement of legislative intent; to provide for a department of emergency services and an advisory committee; and to amend and reenact subdivision b of subsection 2 of section 28-32-01, subsection 3 of section 37-17.1-05, sections 37-17.1-06, 37-17.1-07, 37-17.1-07.1, 37-17.1-11, 37-17.1-13, 37-17.1-14, 37-17.1-14.1, 37-17.1-15,

37-17.1-22, and 37-17.1-23, subsection 2 of section 39-01-01, and sections 39-10-03.2, 54-23.2-01, 54-23.2-04.1, 54-23.2-09, 57-40.6-11, 57-40.6-12, 61-16.2-03, and 65-06-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the department of emergency services.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 89 YEAS, 1 NAY, 0 EXCUSED, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Bellew; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brusegaard; Carlisle; Carlson; Charging; Clark; Conrad; Damschen; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; Devlin; Dietrich; Dosch; Drovda; Ekstrom; Froseth; Galvin; Glassheim; Grande; Gulleon; Haas; Hanson; Hawken; Headland; Herbel; Horter; Hunskor; Iverson; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kerzman; Kingsbury; Klemm; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Monson; Mueller; Nelson; Nicholas; Norland; Nottestad; Onstad; Owens; Pietsch; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Price; Rennerfeldt; Ruby; Sandvig; Schmidt; Sitt; Skarphol; Solberg; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Timm; Uglem; Vigasaa; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Wrangham; Speaker Klein

NAYS: Froelich

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Brandenburg; Maragos; Wald; Zaiser

Engrossed HB 1016 passed and the title was agreed to.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

HB 1018, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Grindberg, Christmann, Krauter and Reps. Carlisle, Kempenich, Kroeber) recommends that the **SENATE RECEDE** from the Senate amendments on HJ pages 1561-1562, adopt amendments as follows, and place HB 1018 on the Seventh order:

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1561 and 1562 of the House Journal and pages 1278-1280 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1018 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 2, replace "section" with "sections" and after "20.1-02-16.1" insert "and 20.1-04-15"

Page 1, line 3, after "fund" insert "and establishing a youth pheasant hunting season; to provide statements of legislative intent; to provide an expiration date"

Page 1, line 23, replace "1,431,668" with "1,414,443"

Page 2, line 2, replace "1,812,072" with "2,562,072"

Page 2, line 3, replace "47,683" with "46,564"

Page 2, line 6, replace "191,480" with "190,854"

Page 2, after line 6, insert:
"Wildlife services

130,000"

Page 2, line 8, replace "5,829,291" with "6,690,321"

Page 2, line 15, replace "16,805,250" with "16,788,025"

Page 2, line 18, replace "5,414,122" with "6,164,122"

Page 2, line 19, replace "10,229,098" with "10,227,979"

Page 2, line 23, replace "1,529,033" with "1,528,407"

Page 2, line 24, replace "550,000" with "680,000"

Page 2, line 26, replace "49,195,054" with "50,056,084"

Page 3, line 9, replace "\$550,000" with "\$680,000"

Page 3, after line 19, insert:

"SECTION 8. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - GRAHAMS ISLAND ROAD. It is the intent of the fifty-ninth legislative assembly that if the bids for the Grahams Island road construction project are less than the amount budgeted, then \$350,000 of the \$750,000 grant provided by the game and fish department for the road project must be returned to the game and fish fund."

Page 3, after line 29, insert:

"SECTION 10. AMENDMENT. Section 20.1-04-15 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

20.1-04-15. Pheasant season - Opening. The open or lawful season on pheasant and the open or lawful season on duck may not commence on the same weekend. The Except as otherwise provided in this section for the opening of pheasant season for youth, the open or lawful season on pheasant may not open earlier than one-half hour before sunrise and the season may not commence earlier than the first Saturday of October of any given year. The governor, in the governor's proclamation, may provide a pheasant hunting season for youth ages twelve through sixteen on the Saturday and Sunday preceding the opening of the regular pheasant season.

SECTION 11. EXPIRATION DATE. Section 10 of this Act is effective through July 31, 2007, and after that date is ineffective."

Renumber accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

House Bill No. 1018 - Game and Fish Department - Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	HOUSE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	SENATE VERSION	COMPARISON TO SENATE
Salaries and wages	\$16,870,147	\$16,805,250	(\$17,225)	\$16,788,025	\$16,788,025	
Operating expenses	9,736,435	9,736,435		9,736,435	9,736,435	
Capital assets	2,961,116	2,961,116		2,961,116	2,961,116	
Grants	5,414,122	5,414,122	750,000	6,164,122	5,914,122	\$250,000
Land habitat and deer depredation	10,232,286	10,229,098	(1,119)	10,227,979	10,227,979	
Noxious weed control	350,000	350,000		350,000	350,000	
Grants, gifts, and donations	700,000	700,000		700,000	700,000	
Nongame wildlife conservation	120,000	120,000		120,000	120,000	
Lonetree Reservoir	1,531,060	1,529,033	(626)	1,528,407	1,528,407	
Wildlife services	550,000	550,000	130,000	680,000	680,000	
Ramp improvements and marina development		800,000		800,000	800,000	
Total all funds	\$48,465,166	\$49,195,054	\$861,030	\$50,056,084	\$49,806,084	\$250,000
Less estimated income	<u>48,465,166</u>	<u>49,195,054</u>	<u>861,030</u>	<u>50,056,084</u>	<u>49,806,084</u>	<u>250,000</u>
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
FTE	152.00	152.00	0.00	152.00	152.00	0.00

Dept. 720 - Game and Fish Department - Detail of Conference Committee Changes

	REDUCES RECOMMENDED FUNDING FOR HEALTH INSURANCE 1	ADDS FUNDING FOR GRAHAMS ISLAND ROAD 2	INCREASES FUNDING FOR WILDLIFE SERVICES 3	TOTAL CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES
Salaries and wages	(\$17,225)			(\$17,225)
Operating expenses				
Capital assets				
Grants		\$750,000		750,000
Land habitat and deer depredation	(1,119)			(1,119)
Noxious weed control				
Grants, gifts, and donations				
Nongame wildlife conservation				
Lonetree Reservoir	(626)			(626)
Wildlife services			\$130,000	130,000
Ramp improvements and marina development				
Total all funds	(\$18,970)	\$750,000	\$130,000	\$861,030
Less estimated income	<u>(18,970)</u>	<u>750,000</u>	<u>130,000</u>	<u>861,030</u>
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
FTE	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00

- ¹ This amendment reduces funding for state employee health insurance premiums from \$559.15 to \$553.95 per month, the same as the Senate version.
- ² This amendment adds \$750,000 of special funds spending authority to the grants line item for the Game and Fish Department to provide a grant toward the construction costs of the Grahams Island road. This amendment also adds a section of legislative intent that if the bids for the road construction project are less than the amount budgeted, then \$350,000 of the \$750,000 must be returned to the game and fish fund. The Senate version added \$500,000 to the grants line for the Grahams Island road, with legislative intent that \$100,000 of the \$500,000 be returned to the game and fish fund if bids were less than budgeted.
- ³ This amendment adds \$130,000 from the game and fish fund for wildlife services, for a total of \$680,000 available to provide to the Agriculture Commissioner to pay for services provided by the United States Department of Agriculture Wildlife Services Agency to alleviate wildlife depredation and damage in North Dakota, the same as the Senate version.

This amendment also amends North Dakota Century Code Section 20.1-04-15 relating to the opening of pheasant hunting season for youth and provides an expiration date, the same as the Senate version.

Engrossed HB 1018 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. CARLISLE MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed HB 1018 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a verification vote.

Engrossed HB 1018, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1018: A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the game and fish department; to amend and reenact sections 20.1-02-16.1 and 20.1-04-15 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the game and fish fund and establishing a youth pheasant hunting season; to provide statements of legislative intent; to provide an expiration date; and to declare an emergency.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 80 YEAS, 10 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Berg; Bernstein; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brusegaard; Carlisle; Carlson; Charging; Clark; Conrad; DeKrey; Delmore; Dietrich; Dosch; Drovdal; Ekstrom; Froseth; Galvin; Glassheim; Grande; Gulleason; Haas; Hanson; Hawken; Headland; Horter; Hunsakor; Iverson; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kerzman; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Monson; Mueller; Nelson; Nicholas; Norland; Nottestad; Onstad; Owens; Pietsch; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Price; Rennerfeldt; Ruby; Sandvig; Schmidt; Sitte; Solberg; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Timm; Uglem; Vigesaa; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Speaker Klein

NAYS: Bellew; Belter; Damschen; Delzer; Devlin; Froelich; Herbel; Kingsbury; Skarphol; Wrangham

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Brandenburg; Maragos; Wald; Zaiser

Engrossed HB 1018 passed, the title was agreed to, and the emergency clause was declared carried.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

HB 1195: Your conference committee (Sens. Mutch, Klein, Heitkamp and Reps. Keiser, Ruby, Boe) recommends that the **SENATE RECEDE** from the Senate amendments on HJ page 1282, adopt amendments as follows, and place HB 1195 on the Seventh order:

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on page 1282 of the House Journal and page 950 of the Senate Journal and that House Bill No. 1195 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and enact two new sections to chapter 52-04 and sections 52-04-08.1 and 52-04-08.2 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to definitions, payment of unemployment insurance by staffing services, employer restructuring activities, and transfers of unemployment insurance tax account reserve history; to amend and reenact subsection 4 of section 52-04-06 and section 52-04-08 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to voluntary contributions to lower unemployment insurance tax rates, transfer of unemployment insurance employer experience history to successor entities, and the

transfer of workforce to other entities; to provide for a legislative council study; and to provide a penalty.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 52-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Definitions. As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires:

1. "Agency" or "bureau" means job service North Dakota.
2. "Client company" means a person that contracts to receive services, within the course of that person's usual business, from a staffing service or that contracts to lease any or all of that person's employees from a staffing service.
3. "Knowingly" means having actual knowledge of or acting with deliberate ignorance or reckless disregard for the prohibition involved.
4. "Staffing service" means an employer in the business of providing the employer's employees to a client company to perform services within the course of that client company's usual business. The term includes a professional employer organization, a staff leasing company, an employee leasing organization, and a temporary staffing company. The term "staffing service" must be broadly construed to encompass an entity that offers services provided by a professional employer organization, a staff leasing company, an employee leasing organization, or a temporary staffing company, regardless of the term used.
5. "Temporary staffing" or "temporary staffing service" means an arrangement through which an employer hires its own employees and assigns the employees to a client company to support or supplement the client company's workforce in a special work situation, including an employee's temporary absence; a temporary skill shortage; a seasonal workload; or a special assignment or project with a targeted end date.

The term does not include an arrangement through which the majority of the client company's workforce has been assigned by a temporary staffing service for a period of more than twelve consecutive months.

6. "Unemployment insurance tax rate" means the rate calculated or assigned under sections 52-04-05 and 52-04-06.
7. "Violates or attempts to violate" includes intent to evade, misrepresentation, and willful nondisclosure.
8. "Workforce" means some or all of the employees of a transferring employer.

SECTION 2. A new section to chapter 52-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

Staffing services - Payment of unemployment insurance taxes.

1. If a staffing service exclusively provides temporary staffing services, the staffing service is considered to be the employee's employer and the staffing service shall pay unemployment insurance taxes at the staffing service's unemployment insurance tax rate. If a staffing service provides temporary and long-term employee staffing services, the staffing service is subject to the reporting and tax requirements associated with the type of employee provided to the client company.
2. For the purposes of long-term employee staffing services provided by a staffing service, the staffing service shall:
 - a. Report quarterly the wages of all employees furnished to each client company and pay taxes on those wages at the client company's

unemployment insurance tax rate; except as otherwise provided under subsection 3.

- b. Maintain complete and separate records of the wages paid to employees furnished to each of the client companies. Claims for benefits must be separately identified by the staffing service for each client company.
 - c. Notify the agency of each client company's name and unemployment insurance account number and the date the staffing service began providing services to the client company. The staffing service shall provide the agency with the information required under this subdivision upon entering an agreement with a client company, but no later than fifteen days from the effective date of the written agreement.
 - d. Supply the agency with a copy of the agreement between the staffing service and the client company.
 - e. Notify the agency upon termination of any agreement with a client company, but no later than fifteen days from the effective date of the termination.
 - f. Share employer responsibilities with the client company, including retention of the authority to hire, terminate, discipline, and reassign employees. If the contractual agreement between the staffing service and a client company is terminated, the employees become the sole employees of the client company.
3. For the purposes of long-term employee staffing services provided by a staffing service, upon authorization of the agency, the staffing service may be considered to be the employee's employer and the staffing service shall pay unemployment insurance taxes at the staffing service's unemployment insurance tax rate. The agency may not make an authorization under this subsection unless one of the following requirements is met:
- a. In the case of a client company unemployment insurance tax rate that is higher than the staffing services tax rate:
 - (1) The staffing service:
 - (a) Calculates the difference between the staffing service's tax rate and the client company's tax rate;
 - (b) Applies the difference to the wages to be earned by the employees furnished to the client company in the following completed calendar quarter; and
 - (c) Notifies the agency that such application would, if the staffing service's tax rate were applied to those same wages, cause a reduction in the tax due on those wages which does not exceed five hundred dollars.
 - (2) If the reduction under paragraph 1 exceeds five hundred dollars, at the written request of the staffing service, the agency may make a written determination that it is appropriate to allow the staffing service to use the staffing service's unemployment insurance tax rate.
 - b. The staffing service includes in its contract with the client company a requirement that if the client company's unemployment insurance tax rate is higher than the staffing service's tax rate, the client will arrange to make payment to the agency, pursuant to subsection 4 of section 52-04-06, in the amount necessary to cause the client company's unemployment insurance tax rate should it be recomputed to be determined by the agency to be equivalent to the staffing service's unemployment insurance tax rate. Before the agency makes an authorization under this subdivision, the agency actually must receive payment of the amount required to cause the determination that the client company has complied with this subdivision.

- c. The staffing service demonstrates to the agency that the staffing service has entered an agreement with a client company that has an unemployment insurance tax rate that is, at the time of execution of the contract, equal to or lower than the staffing service's tax rate.
- 4. If a staffing service enters a contract with a client company that has an unemployment insurance tax rate that is lower than the staffing service's tax rate, the agency shall determine the following year's tax rate for the staffing service by calculating a blended reserve ratio using the proportion of that client company's total wages paid for up to the previous six years to the total wages paid for up to the previous six years for all of that staffing service's client companies whose furnished workers are considered the staffing service's employees for unemployment insurance tax purposes pursuant to subsection 3.
- 5. Both a staffing service and client company are considered employers for the purposes of this title. Both parties to a contract between a staffing service and a client company are jointly liable for delinquent unemployment insurance taxes, and the agency may seek to collect such delinquent taxes, and any penalties and interest due, from either party. This chapter does not modify or impair any other provisions of the contract between the staffing service and the client company not relating to the requirements of this subsection concerning liability for payment of taxes on the wages paid to workers furnished by the staffing service to the client company, and the means of determining the tax rate to be applied to those wages.
- 6. The agency shall determine whether a person is a staffing service. If the agency determines a person is a staffing service, the agency may further determine if the person is a temporary staffing service. The agency's determination must be issued in writing, and within fifteen days of the date of issuance of that determination, a person aggrieved by that determination may appeal that determination. The appeal must be heard in the same manner and with the same possible results as all other administrative appeals under this title. In making a determination under this subsection, the agency may consider:
 - a. The number of client companies with which the staffing service has contracts;
 - b. The length of time the staffing service has been in existence;
 - c. The extent to which the staffing service extends services to the general public;
 - d. The degree to which the client company and the staffing services are separate and unrelated business entities;
 - e. The repetition of officers and managers between the client company and staffing service;
 - f. The scope of services provided by the staffing service;
 - g. The relationship between the staffing service and the client company's workers;
 - h. The written agreement between the staffing service and the client company; and
 - i. Any other factor determined relevant by the agency.
- 7. The agency may require information from any staffing service, including a list of current client company accounts, staffing assignments, and wage information. A client company shall provide any information requested by the agency regarding any staffing service.

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Subsection 4 of section 52-04-06 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

- 4. a. After each year's rate schedule has been established, an employer may pay into the fund, or cause to be paid into the fund on the

employer's behalf, an amount in excess of the contributions required to be paid under this section. That amount must be credited to the employer's separate account. The employer's rate must be recomputed with the amount paid pursuant to this subsection included ~~in the calculation only, except as allowed by subdivision b,~~ if that amount was paid by April thirtieth of that year. Payments may not be refunded or used as credit in the payment of contributions.

- b. An employer that enters a contract with a staffing service, other than a temporary staffing service, may make the payments authorized by this subsection at any time during the rate year and the agency will determine if that payment is adequate to allow the staffing service to comply with subsection 3 of section 2 of this Act; however, the employer's tax rate will remain in effect for the remainder of the tax year. The agency will deposit any payment received pursuant to this subsection immediately and will credit it to the employer's separate account, but the agency will apply the payment to the calculation of the employer's tax rate for the following rate year. In order to take advantage of this subdivision and subsection 3 of section 2 of this Act, an employer may not be delinquent in its unemployment insurance tax payments on the date on which the payment authorized by this subdivision is made.

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 52-04-08 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

52-04-08. Succession to predecessor's experience record - Impact of substantial common ownership, management, or control.

1. An employing unit that in any manner acquires all or part of the organization, business, trade, workforce, or assets of another employer and continues essentially the same business activity of the whole or part transferred, ~~must~~ may upon request be transferred in accordance with ~~such regulations as the bureau may prescribe~~ law and any relevant rules adopted by the agency, the whole or appropriate part of the experience record, reserve balance, and benefit experience of the ~~preceding~~ predecessor employer, unless the agency finds that the employing unit acquired the business solely or primarily for the purpose of obtaining a lower unemployment insurance tax rate. ~~Provided that if~~ If the predecessor files a written protest against such transfer within fifteen days of being notified of the successor's application, the transfer will not be made.
2. When an employing unit in any manner acquires all or part of the organization, business, trade, workforce, or assets of another employer, ~~the bureau~~ the agency shall transfer all or the appropriate part of the experience record, reserve balance, whether positive or negative, and benefit experience of such predecessor to the successor if it finds that (a) the predecessor was owned or controlled by or owned or controlled the successor directly or indirectly, by legally enforceable means or otherwise or (b) both the predecessor and successor were owned or controlled either directly or indirectly, by legally enforceable means or otherwise, by the same interests there was, at the time of acquisition, substantially common ownership, management, or control of the predecessor and the successor.
3. When a part of an employer's experience record reserve account and benefit experience is ~~to be~~ transferred under this section, the portion of the experience record and reserve account transferred must be in the same ratio to the total experience record and reserve account as the average annual payroll of the transferred organization, trade, business, workforce, or assets is to the total average annual payroll of the predecessor.
4. An employing unit's experience record may not be transferred in an amount that results in the successor and predecessor portions totaling more than one hundred percent of the predecessor's history.

SECTION 5. Section 52-04-08.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

52-04-08.1. Implementation of federal anti-SUTA dumping legislation. The agency shall implement section 52-04-08.2 to ensure necessary compliance with section 303(k) of the Social Security Act [Pub. L. 108-195; 42 U.S.C. 503]. The agency shall adopt rules and procedures necessary to ensure compliance with that section. The agency may issue necessary subpoenas, in accordance with sections 52-06-23 and 52-06-25, to carry out its responsibilities under this chapter.

SECTION 6. Section 52-04-08.2 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

52-04-08.2. Transfers of unemployment insurance experience - Recalculation of rates - Definitions - Civil and criminal penalties. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the following applies regarding assignment of penalty tax rates and transfers and acquisitions of businesses:

1. a. If an employer transfers all or a part of its trade or business to another employer and at the time of the transfer there is substantially common ownership, management, or control of the two employers, the unemployment experience attributable to the transferred trade or business is transferred to the employer to which the business is transferred. The rates of both employers must be recalculated and made effective on the first day of the quarter in which the transfer took effect. The transfer of any of the employer's workforce to another employer is considered a transfer of trade or business under this subsection if, as a result of the transfer, the transferring employer no longer performs the trade or business in which the transferred workforce was engaged, and the trade or business is performed by the employer to which the workforce was transferred.
 - b. If, following a transfer of experience under subdivision a, the agency determines that a substantial purpose of the transfer of trade or business was to obtain a reduced unemployment insurance tax rate, the experience ratings of the employers involved must be combined into a single account and a single unemployment insurance tax rate must be assigned to that account.
 2. If a person, who at the time of acquisition is not an employer under this title, acquires the trade or business of an employer, the unemployment experience of the acquired business may not be transferred to that person if the agency finds that the person acquired the business solely or primarily for the purpose of obtaining a lower unemployment insurance tax rate. Instead, the person must be assigned the applicable new employer rate calculated under section 52-04-05. In determining whether the business was acquired solely or primarily for the purpose of obtaining a lower unemployment insurance tax rate, the agency shall use objective factors that may include the cost of acquiring the business, whether the person continued the business enterprise of the acquired business, how long the business enterprise was continued, and whether a substantial number of new employees were hired for performance of duties unrelated to the business activity conducted before acquisition.
 3. If a person knowingly acts or attempts to transfer or acquire a trade or business solely or primarily for the purpose of obtaining a lower unemployment insurance tax rate or knowingly violates any other provision of this chapter related to determining the assignment of an unemployment insurance tax rate, or if a person knowingly advises another person in a way that results in a violation of those provisions, the person is subject to the civil penalties provided in this subsection.
 - a. If the person is an employer, the employer must be assigned, in lieu of that employer's experience rate, the highest rate assignable under this chapter for the rate year during which the violation or attempted violation occurred and the three rate years immediately following that rate year. However, if the employer's experience rate is already at the highest rate for any year of that four-year period or if the amount of increase in the person's experience rate imposed under this subdivision would be less than two percent for any year of the four-year period, the penalty unemployment insurance tax rate for the year must be determined by adding a rate increment of two percent of taxable wages to the calculated experience rate.

- b. If the person is not an employer, the person is subject to a civil penalty of not more than twenty-five thousand dollars. Any civil penalty collected must be deposited in the penalty and interest account established under section 52-04-22.
4. In addition to the civil penalty imposed under subsection 3, any person that knowingly violates this section or knowingly attempts to violate this section is guilty of a class C felony.

SECTION 7. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STUDY - PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYER ORGANIZATIONS. The legislative council shall consider studying, during the 2005-06 interim, the feasibility and desirability of requiring professional employer organizations operating in North Dakota to register with the state. The study must include consideration of how other states address the issue of registration of professional employer organizations. The legislative council shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixtieth legislative assembly."

Renumber accordingly

HB 1195 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. KEISER MOVED that the conference committee report on HB 1195 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

HB 1195, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1195: A BILL for an Act to create and enact two new sections to chapter 52-04 and sections 52-04-08.1 and 52-04-08.2 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to definitions, payment of unemployment insurance by staffing services, employer restructuring activities, and transfers of unemployment insurance tax account reserve history; to amend and reenact subsection 4 of section 52-04-06 and section 52-04-08 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to voluntary contributions to lower unemployment insurance tax rates, transfer of unemployment insurance employer experience history to successor entities, and the transfer of workforce to other entities; to provide for a legislative council study; and to provide a penalty.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 83 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 7 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Bellew; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brusegaard; Carlisle; Carlson; Charging; Clark; Damschen; Delmore; Delzer; Devlin; Dosch; Drovdal; Froelich; Froseth; Galvin; Glassheim; Grande; Gulleson; Haas; Hanson; Hawken; Headland; Herbel; Horter; Hunsakor; Iverson; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kerzman; Kingsbury; Klemm; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Monson; Mueller; Nelson; Nicholas; Norland; Nottestad; Owens; Pietsch; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Price; Rennerfeldt; Ruby; Sandvig; Schmidt; Sitte; Solberg; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Timm; Uglem; Vigesaa; Wall; Weiler; Wieland; Williams; Wrangham; Speaker Klein

NAYS: Conrad; Dietrich; Ekstrom; Onstad

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Brandenburg; DeKrey; Maragos; Skarphol; Wald; Weisz; Zaiser

HB 1195 passed and the title was agreed to.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. BRUSEGAARD MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed HB 1397 as printed on HJ page 1422 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed HB 1397, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

HB 1397: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 15-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to opportunities for the enrollment of students in a veterinary medical education program; to provide an appropriation; and to provide for continuation of program funding.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 86 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 6 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aarsvold; Amerman; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brusegaard; Carlisle; Carlson; Charging; Clark; Conrad; Damschen; Delmore; Devlin; Dietrich; Dosch; Drovdal; Ekstrom; Froelich; Froseth; Galvin; Glassheim; Grande; Gulleeson; Haas; Hanson; Hawken; Headland; Herbel; Horter; Hunskor; Iverson; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kerzman; Kingsbury; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Monson; Mueller; Nelson; Nicholas; Norland; Nottestad; Onstad; Owens; Pietsch; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Price; Rennerfeldt; Ruby; Sandvig; Schmidt; Sitte; Skarphol; Solberg; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Timm; Uglem; Vigesaa; Wall; Weiler; Wieland; Williams; Wrangham; Speaker Klein

NAYS: Bellew; Delzer

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Brandenburg; DeKrey; Maragos; Wald; Weisz; Zaiser

Engrossed HB 1397 passed and the title was agreed to.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

SB 2002, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Kilzer, Schobinger, Tallackson and Reps. Carlisle, Thoreson, Kroeber) recommends that the **SENATE ACCEDE** to the House amendments on SJ pages 1091-1094 and place SB 2002 on the Seventh order.

Engrossed SB 2002 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. CARLISLE MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2002 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

SB 2004, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Andrist, Kilzer, Mathern and Reps. Bellew, Delzer, Kerzman) recommends that the **HOUSE RECEDE** from the House amendments on SJ pages 1309-1311, adopt amendments as follows, and place SB 2004 on the Seventh order:

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1309-1311 of the Senate Journal and pages 1570-1573 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2004 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 2, after "health" insert "; to create and enact a new subsection to section 23-01-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the state health officer's duty to establish an environmental review process for commercial buildings"

Page 1, line 10, after "campgrounds" insert "; to provide for a report to the legislative council; to provide legislative intent"

Page 2, line 7, replace "2,712,149" with "2,080,994"

Page 2, line 8, replace "1,288,653" with "1,462,724"

Page 2, line 10, replace "5,901,038" with "5,111,538"

Page 2, line 11, replace "903,645" with "902,898"

Page 2, line 14, replace "7,085,117" with "5,837,786"

Page 2, line 15, replace "6,826,931" with "5,602,356"

Page 2, line 16, replace "258,186" with "235,430"

Page 2, line 22, replace "32,685,078" with "32,053,923"

Page 2, line 23, replace "25,439,910" with "25,613,981"

Page 2, line 25, replace "42,591,666" with "41,802,166"

Page 2, line 26, replace "8,686,742" with "8,685,995"

Page 2, line 28, replace "126,667,865" with "125,420,534"

Page 2, line 29, replace "113,308,587" with "112,084,012"

Page 2, line 30, replace "13,359,278" with "13,336,522"

Page 3, line 13, replace "\$280,000" with "\$340,000"

Page 4, after line 26, insert:

"SECTION 13. A new subsection to section 23-01-05 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

- a. Establish a review process for instances in which the department is requested to conduct an epidemiological assessment of a commercial building. The epidemiological assessment must include:
 - (1) A statement of whether there are known environmental causes;
 - (2) If there are known environmental causes identified, a recommendation of how they can be remediated or mitigated; and
 - (3) If there are no known environmental causes identified, a statement that no known causes exist.
- b. Costs for remediation, mitigation, and consultant services are the responsibility of the building owner. Proof of remediation of any identified environmental concern related to the epidemiological assessment is the burden of the building owner."

Page 7, line 22, remove "funded by grants, fees, and increases in tobacco taxes"

Page 7, after line 27, insert:

"SECTION 21. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STUDY - PUBLIC HEALTH INFRASTRUCTURE AND FOOD AND LODGING INSPECTIONS. The legislative council shall study, during the 2005-06 interim, the state's public health unit infrastructure and the ability of the public health units to respond to public health issues. The study must include an assessment of the efficiency of operations, given the personnel and financial resources available, and the effectiveness of services, given the lines of governmental authority of the current infrastructure. The study must include the efficiency of the food and lodging investigation services provided by the state department of health and the public health units and must develop a plan maximizing efficiencies through a coordinated system and fee structure. The legislative council shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixtieth legislative assembly.

SECTION 22. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STUDY - TOBACCO SETTLEMENT COLLECTIONS. The legislative council shall consider studying, during the 2005-06 interim, whether to change guidelines for funding programs as a result of additional tobacco settlement collections that are anticipated to be received and deposited in the community health trust fund from 2008 through 2017. The legislative council shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixtieth legislative assembly.

SECTION 23. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - WORKSITE WELLNESS PILOT PROJECT. It is the intent of the fifty-ninth legislative assembly that the state department of health may use federal funding to match nonstate funding and contract with a nonstate entity for a worksite wellness pilot project during the 2005-07 biennium.

The state department of health shall provide a report on the pilot project to the sixtieth legislative assembly.

SECTION 24. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - FUNDING FOR ABSTINENCE PROGRAMS. It is the intent of the fifty-ninth legislative assembly that the state department of health pursue \$220,000 for abstinence programs from federal grants or other sources and that the new funding be in addition to existing funding for abstinence programs.

SECTION 25. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - FEDERAL BIOTERRORISM FUNDING. It is the intent of the fifty-ninth legislative assembly that the full-time equivalent employee positions funded with federal bioterrorism grants be discontinued when the funding for the programs ends.

SECTION 26. BASIC CARE SURVEY PILOT PROJECT - LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL REPORT. The state department of health shall develop a pilot project to test an announced basic care survey process. The pilot project must begin with fifty percent of the state-licensed basic care providers surveyed receiving an announced survey and the remaining receiving an unannounced survey. The state department of health shall evaluate the survey pilot project and submit a report to the legislative council during the 2005-06 interim. The report must include a recommendation of whether the unannounced survey process should continue for all basic care facilities. The pilot project must include standard basic care surveys and all complaint investigations must be unannounced."

Renumber accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

Senate Bill No. 2004 - State Department of Health - Conference Committee Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	SENATE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION	HOUSE VERSION	COMPARISON TO HOUSE
Salaries and wages	\$32,816,481	\$32,685,078	(\$631,155)	\$32,053,923	\$32,179,923	(\$126,000)
Operating expenses	25,322,640	25,439,910	174,071	25,613,981	25,546,623	67,358
Capital assets	1,514,469	1,514,469		1,514,469	1,514,469	
Grants	42,466,666	42,591,666	(789,500)	41,802,166	41,827,166	(25,000)
Tobacco prevention and control	8,689,062	8,686,742	(747)	8,685,995	8,685,995	
WIC food payments	<u>15,750,000</u>	<u>15,750,000</u>		<u>15,750,000</u>	<u>15,750,000</u>	
Total all funds	\$126,559,318	\$126,667,865	(\$1,247,331)	\$125,420,534	\$125,504,176	(\$83,642)
Less estimated income	<u>112,120,210</u>	<u>113,308,587</u>	<u>(1,224,575)</u>	<u>112,084,012</u>	<u>112,167,654</u>	<u>(83,642)</u>
General fund	\$14,439,108	\$13,359,278	(\$22,756)	\$13,336,522	\$13,336,522	\$0
FTE	317.00	317.00	(5.50)	311.50	312.50	(1.00)

Dept. 301 - State Department of Health - Detail of Conference Committee Changes

	REMOVES FUNDING FOR PHYSICIAN LOAN REPAYMENT PROGRAM ¹	CHANGES FUNDING SOURCE FOR FOOD AND LODGING INSPECTIONS ²	DECREASES OPERATIONS FOR FOOD AND LODGING INSPECTIONS ³	REMOVES 1 FTE FOOD AND LODGING INSPECTOR POSITION ⁴	REMOVES FUNDING FOR THE NURSE SCHOLARSHIP AND GRANT PROGRAM ⁵	REDUCES FUNDING FOR QUICK RESPONSE UNIT PILOT PROJECT ⁶
Salaries and wages				(\$90,077)		
Operating expenses		\$25,000	(\$68,512)			
Capital assets						
Grants	(\$125,000)				(\$489,500)	(\$100,000)
Tobacco prevention and control						
WIC food payments						
Total all funds	(\$125,000)	\$25,000	(\$68,512)	(\$90,077)	(\$489,500)	(\$100,000)
Less estimated income		<u>(114,116)</u>	<u>(68,512)</u>	<u>(63,054)</u>	<u>(489,500)</u>	<u>(100,000)</u>
General fund	(\$125,000)	\$139,116	\$0	(\$27,023)	\$0	\$0
FTE	0.00	0.00	0.00	(1.00)	0.00	0.00
	ADDS FUNDING FOR ARSENIC PROGRAM ⁷	DECREASES FUNDING FOR HEALTHY NORTH DAKOTA PROGRAM ⁸	REMOVES 1 FTE POSITION AND FUNDING FOR ASTHMA PROGRAM ⁹	REDUCES RECOMMENDED FUNDING FOR HEALTH INSURANCE ¹⁰	ADDS FUNDING FOR DOMESTIC VIOLENCE PREVENTION GRANTS ¹¹	ADDS FUNDING FOR ABSTINENCE PROGRAMS ¹²

Salaries and wages		(\$282,240)	(\$93,774)	(\$39,064)		
Operating expenses	\$700,000	34,474	(510,491)			\$220,000
Capital assets						
Grants		(135,000)			\$60,000	
Tobacco prevention and control				(747)		
WIC food payments						
Total all funds	\$700,000	(\$382,766)	(\$604,265)	(\$39,811)	\$60,000	\$220,000
Less estimated income	<u>700,000</u>	<u>(382,766)</u>	<u>(604,265)</u>	<u>(29,962)</u>	<u>60,000</u>	<u>220,000</u>
General fund	\$0	\$0	\$0	(\$9,849)	\$0	\$0
FTE	0.00	(2.50)	(1.00)	0.00	0.00	0.00

	REMOVES FUNDING FOR DATA WAREHOUSE PROGRAM ¹³	TOTAL CONFERENCE COMMITTEE CHANGES
Salaries and wages	(\$126,000)	(\$631,155)
Operating expenses	(226,400)	174,071
Capital assets		
Grants		(789,500)
Tobacco prevention and control		(747)
WIC food payments		
Total all funds	(\$352,400)	(\$1,247,331)
Less estimated income	<u>(352,400)</u>	<u>(1,224,575)</u>
General fund	\$0	(\$22,756)
FTE	(1.00)	(5.50)

¹ The conference committee removed \$125,000 from the general fund for the state-community matching physician loan repayment program and the state-community matching loan repayment program for nurse practitioners, physician assistants, and certified nurse midwives. The House removed \$100,000 from this program.

² The conference committee adjusted food and lodging inspections funding to provide a net amount of \$125,000 from the general fund for the program. The House version provided \$100,000 from the general fund for food and lodging inspections.

³ The conference committee reduced operating expenses for food and lodging inspections by \$68,512. The House reduction was for \$117,270. The anticipated food and lodging fee increase will be \$190,000. The House version would have increased fees by \$155,242.

The total funding for food and lodging for the executive budget, Senate, and conference committee versions are:

	EXECUTIVE RECOMMENDATION	SENATE VERSION	CONFERENCE COMMITTEE VERSION
General fund	\$652,865	\$12,907	\$125,000
Special funds	<u>109,547</u>	<u>866,775</u>	<u>621,093</u>
Total	\$762,412	\$879,682	\$746,093

⁴ The conference committee agreed with the House amendment to remove 1 FTE environmental health inspector position, which was included in the executive recommendation to conduct additional food and lodging inspections.

⁵ The conference committee agreed with the House amendment to remove funding from the health care trust fund for the scholarship and nurses' student loan repayment grant program.

⁶ The conference committee agreed with the House amendment to decrease funding from the health care trust fund for the quick response unit pilot project from \$225,000 to \$125,000.

⁷ The conference committee agreed with the House amendment to increase other funds spending authority for the department to receive a grant to address arsenic issues in southeastern North Dakota.

⁸ The conference committee agreed with the House amendment to remove 2.5 FTE positions and decreased funding for the Healthy North Dakota program by \$382,766. The remaining Healthy North Dakota funding authority is for contract services related to a worksite wellness pilot project (\$135,000).

⁹ The conference committee agreed with the House amendment to remove 1 FTE program administrator position and decreased the funding for the asthma program. The department is to request approval from the Emergency Commission and Budget Section if federal funding for this program is authorized.

¹⁰ This amendment reduces the funding for state employee health insurance premiums from \$559.15 to \$553.95 per month.

¹¹ The conference committee agreed with the House amendment to increase funding from the domestic violence prevention fund for grants. Additional revenues of approximately \$60,000 are anticipated to be generated for the fund if 2005 Senate Bill No. 2361 is approved by the 2005 Legislative Assembly.

¹² The conference committee added \$220,000 of other funds spending authority for abstinence programs with the intent that the State Department of Health pursue additional funding to what is currently available for the programs.

¹³ The conference committee removed funding and 1 FTE position related to the department's data warehouse program.

The conference committee agreed with the House amendment providing for a study to determine the funding guidelines for additional tobacco settlement funds that are anticipated to be received during the 2007-09 biennium.

The conference committee provided \$220,000 of spending authority for abstinence education programs and added an intent section that the State Department of Health pursue additional federal or other funds for abstinence programs.

The conference committee agreed with the House amendment to provide intent that FTE positions funded with federal bioterrorism grants not be continued by the department when the funding stops.

The conference committee agreed with the House amendment providing for a pilot project for the State Department of Health to conduct announced basic care surveys.

The conference committee provided for the State Department of Health to establish an environmental review process for commercial buildings.

The conference committee provided for a Legislative Council study of food and lodging inspection programs.

The conference committee agreed with the House amendment providing for a worksite wellness pilot project to be contracted with a nonstate entity by the State Department of Health.

Engrossed SB 2004 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

REP. BELLEW MOVED that the conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2004 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed SB 2004, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order.

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

SB 2004: A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state department of health; to create and enact a new subsection to section 23-01-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the state health officer's duty to establish an environmental review process for commercial buildings; to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 19-02.1-24, section 19-08-04, subsections 5 and 8 of section 23-09-01, and sections 23-09-16, 23-09-24, 23-09.1-02.2, and 23-10-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to licensure of food vending machines, beverage sales, food and lodging establishments, assisted living facilities, pushcarts, mobile food units, salvaged food distributors, bed and breakfasts, mobile home parks, trailer parks, and campgrounds; to repeal sections 19-08-05, 23-09-17, 23-09.1-03, and 23-10-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to license fee amounts for beverage sales, food and lodging establishments, mobile food units, pushcarts, bed and breakfasts, mobile home parks, trailer parks, and campgrounds; to provide for a report to the legislative council; to provide legislative intent; and to provide for a legislative council study.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 83 YEAS, 5 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 6 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Amerman; Bellew; Belter; Berg; Bernstein; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brusegaard; Carlisle; Carlson; Charging; Clark; Conrad; Damschen; Delmore; Delzer; Dietrich; Drovdal; Ekstrom; Froelich; Froseth; Galvin; Glasheim; Grande; Gulleason; Haas; Hanson; Hawken; Headland; Herbel; Horter; Hunskor; Iverson; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kerzman; Kingsbury; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Monson; Mueller; Nelson; Nicholas; Norland; Nottestad; Onstad; Owens; Pietsch; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Price; Rennerfeldt; Ruby; Sandvig; Schmidt;

Sitte; Skarphol; Solberg; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Timm; Uglem; Vigessaa; Wall; Wieland; Williams; Speaker Klein

NAYS: Aarsvold; Devlin; Dosch; Weiler; Wrangham

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Brandenburg; DeKrey; Maragos; Wald; Weisz; Zaiser

Engrossed SB 2004 passed and the title was agreed to.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)
MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has amended and subsequently passed: HB 1015.

SENATE AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1015

Page 1, line 4, remove "section 4-28-08,"

Page 1, line 5, remove the first comma, after "sections" insert "54-03-20 as amended by Senate Bill No. 2059 as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly," and replace "54-52.1-06" with "54-44.1-06, 54-44.1-06.1"

Page 1, line 6, remove "the state wheat commission fund,"

Page 1, line 7, remove the first "and" and after "radio" insert ", lodging reimbursement for members of the legislative assembly, and preparation of the budget data; to repeal sections 9 and 12 of Senate Bill No. 2015, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, relating to composite schedules for teacher salaries and a legislative council study of the department of corrections and rehabilitation; to provide for a legislative council study; to provide legislative intent"

Page 1, line 24, replace "\$1,876,214" with "\$1,892,438"

Page 1, line 25, replace "(94,850)" with "12,350"

Page 2, line 4, replace "\$312,926" with "\$221,950"

Page 2, line 5, replace "(514,476)" with "(410,608)"

Page 2, line 6, replace "201,550" with "188,658"

Page 2, line 13, replace "13,512,017" with "13,495,793"

Page 2, line 14, replace "11,233,906" with "11,341,106"

Page 2, line 18, replace "27,316,061" with "27,407,037"

Page 2, line 19, replace "7,374,000" with "7,477,868"

Page 2, line 20, replace "19,942,061" with "19,929,169"

Page 3, line 11, remove "or such greater amount as may be available"

Page 3, remove lines 22 through 31

Page 4, remove lines 1 through 5

Page 5, after line 12, insert:

"SECTION 11. AMENDMENT. Section 54-03-20 of the North Dakota Century Code, as amended by section 1 of Senate Bill No. 2059 as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, is amended and reenacted as follows:

54-03-20. Compensation and expense reimbursement of members of the legislative assembly.

1. Each member of the legislative assembly is entitled to receive as compensation for services the sum of one hundred twenty-five dollars for each calendar day during any organizational, special, or regular legislative session and for each day that member attends a meeting of a legislative

- b. If a member dies or resigns from office during the member's term, the member may be paid only the allowances provided for in this section for the period for which the member was actually a member.
 - c. The majority and minority leaders of the house and senate and the chairman of the legislative council, if the chairman is not a majority or minority leader, are each entitled to receive as compensation, in addition to any other compensation or expense reimbursement provided by law, the sum of two hundred fifty dollars per month during the biennium for their execution of public duties.
- 8. Attendance at any organizational, special, or regular session of the legislative assembly by any member is a conclusive presumption of entitlement as set out in this section and compensation and expense allowances must be excluded from gross income for income tax purposes to the extent permitted for federal income tax purposes under section 127 of the Economic Recovery Tax Act of 1981 [Pub. L. 97-34; 95 Stat. 202; 26 U.S.C. 162(i)]."

Page 5, after line 18, insert:

"SECTION 13. AMENDMENT. Section 54-44.1-06 of the North Dakota Century Code, as effective after June 30, 2005, is amended and reenacted as follows:

54-44.1-06. (Effective after June 30, 2005) Preparation of the budget data - Contents. The director of the budget, through the office of the budget, shall prepare budget data which must contain and include the following:

1. Summary statements of the financial condition of the state, accompanied by the detailed schedules of assets and liabilities as the director of the budget determines desirable, which must include the following:
 - a. Summary statements of fund balances and assets showing in detail for each fund the surplus or deficit at the beginning of each of the two fiscal years of the previous biennium and the first fiscal year of the present biennium, the actual revenue for those years, the total appropriations for the previous and present biennium, and the total expenditures for those fiscal years; and
 - b. Similar summary statements of the estimated fund balances and assets for the current fiscal year and each of the fiscal years of the next biennium.

Summary statements may include a comparative consolidated balance sheet showing all the assets and liabilities of the state and the surplus or deficit, as the case may be, at the close of the first fiscal year of the current biennium.

2. Statements of actual revenue for the previous biennium, the first year of the present biennium, and the estimated revenue of the current fiscal year and of the next biennium, and a statement of unappropriated surplus expected to have accrued in the state treasury at the beginning of the next fiscal year. The statement of unappropriated surplus for the general fund must reflect any projected deficiency appropriations relating to expenditures from the general fund for the present biennium. The statements of revenue and estimated revenue must be classified by sources and by budget unit collecting them. Existing sources of revenue must be analyzed as to their equity, productivity, and need for revision, and any proposed new sources of revenue must be explained.
3. Summary statements of expenditures of the previous biennium and first year of the present biennium, itemized by budget units and classified as prescribed by the director of the budget.
4. Detailed comparative statements of expenditures and requests for appropriations by funds, budget units and classification of expenditures, showing the expenditures for the previous biennium, the first fiscal year of the present biennium, the budget of the current biennium, and the governor's recommendation for appropriations for each budget unit for the next biennium, all distributed according to the prescribed classification of

expenditures. Following the lists of actual and proposed expenditures of each budget unit there must be a brief explanation of the functions of the unit and comments on its policies and plans and on any considerable differences among the amounts recommended, with any descriptive, quantitative, comparative, and other data as to work done, unit costs, and like information as may be considered necessary or desirable. For capital outlay expenditures involving construction projects to be completed in two or more fiscal years, there must be shown the total estimated cost of each such project and the amount thereof recommended to be appropriated and expended in each ensuing fiscal year until completion of the project. Capital outlay needs may be projected for at least two years beyond the period covered by the budget.

5. A detailed statement showing the estimate of all moneys required to be raised or appropriated for the payment of interest upon the funded debt of the state and its other obligations bearing interest, and the amount of money required to be contributed in the two next ensuing fiscal years to the general sinking funds maintained for the redemption and payment of the debts of the state.
6. A summary statement of the unappropriated fund balance estimated to be available at the beginning of the next biennium, and the estimated revenue of the next biennium, as compared with the total recommended amounts of appropriation for all classes of expenditures for the next biennium, and if the total of the recommended expenditures exceeds the total of the estimated resources, recommendations as to how the deficiency is to be met and estimates of any proposed additional revenue.
7. Drafts of a proposed ~~general appropriations act and special~~ appropriations acts for executive branch departments, agencies, and institutions, including institutions of higher education, providing the same funding as approved by the most recently adjourned special or regular session of the legislative assembly and amendments to the drafts of appropriations acts embodying the budget data and recommendations of the governor for appropriations for the next biennium and drafts of such revenues and other acts recommended by the governor for putting into effect the proposed financial plan. The recommended general appropriation for each budget unit must be specified in a separate section of the general appropriations act.
8. A list of every individual asset or service, excluding real estate, with a value of at least fifty thousand dollars and every group of assets and services comprising a single system with a combined value of at least fifty thousand dollars acquired through a capital or operating lease arrangement or debt financing arrangement by a state agency or institution. The list must include assets or services acquired in the current biennium and anticipated assets or services to be acquired in the next biennium.
9. A financial plan for a prospective period of six years, including the executive budget recommendation for the next biennium, estimates of anticipated general fund and non-general fund revenues prepared for an additional period of four years, and estimates of the general fund and non-general fund appropriations required for each major program for an additional period of four years. In preparing the financial plan, the office of management and budget may utilize estimates prepared by state agencies or such other information as may be deemed necessary.
10. Any other information as the director of the budget determines desirable or as is required by law.

SECTION 14. AMENDMENT. Section 54-44.1-06.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

54-44.1-06.1. Contents of capital construction bill. The office of management and budget shall continue to prepare capital construction budgets and a capital construction bill. ~~All future~~ The capital construction bill may only include projects involving bonding. All other capital projects funded with general fund moneys or special funds must be included in draft amendments to the appropriate agency's appropriation bill."

"SECTION 16. REPEAL. Section 9 of Senate Bill No. 2015, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, is repealed.

SECTION 17. REPEAL. Section 12 of Senate Bill No. 2015, as approved by the fifty-ninth legislative assembly, is repealed.

SECTION 18. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STUDY - DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS AND REHABILITATION EMPLOYEE SALARIES. The legislative council shall consider studying, during the 2005-06 interim, employee salaries of the department of corrections and rehabilitation. The study must include:

1. Input from the office of management and budget human resource management services division regarding a salary comparison of the department's employees to market, the impact on the salary comparison of the salary increases and equity adjustments authorized for the 2005-07 biennium, and a review of the same information from 1995 through 2005, including a comparison of the salaries for the department of corrections and rehabilitation employees to market and any salary increases and equity adjustments provided during that time.
2. Input from the department of corrections and rehabilitation regarding employee salary increases provided by job classification from 1995 through 2005, employee turnover by job classification, salary equity funding requested and provided, and other relevant information.
3. A review by the legislative council of reasons relating to the divergence of salaries for the department of corrections and rehabilitation employees from market, including the related impact of demands on the department's budget due to growth in inmate populations, increase in contract housing of inmates, budget reductions, and agency turnback.

The legislative council shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixtieth legislative assembly.

SECTION 19. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - EQUITY ADJUSTMENTS FOR STATE EMPLOYEES. It is the intent of the fifty-ninth legislative assembly that in addition to state employee compensation adjustments provided by the legislative assembly, state agencies may provide salary equity adjustments to state employees during the second year of the biennium averaging one percent only to the extent the increase can be paid within the limits of the agency's appropriation. The market equity increases are to be prioritized based on equity for employees whose salaries are furthest from their respective salary range midpoints effective July 1, 2005. Market equity increases may not be given to employees whose salary exceeds the midpoints of their assigned salary range effective July 1, 2005. The agency shall report the equity adjustments provided to the office of management and budget."

Renumber accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

House Bill No. 1015 - Summary of Senate Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	HOUSE VERSION	SENATE CHANGES	SENATE VERSION
Office of Management and Budget				
Total all funds	\$33,952,969	\$27,316,061	\$90,976	\$27,407,037
Less estimated income	11,683,281	7,374,000	103,868	7,477,868
General fund	\$22,269,688	\$19,942,061	(\$12,892)	\$19,929,169
Legislative Assembly				
Total all funds	\$0	\$100,000	\$0	\$100,000
Less estimated income				
General fund	\$0	\$100,000	\$0	\$100,000
Bill Total				
Total all funds	\$33,952,969	\$27,416,061	\$90,976	\$27,507,037
Less estimated income	11,683,281	7,374,000	103,868	7,477,868
General fund	\$22,269,688	\$20,042,061	(\$12,892)	\$20,029,169

House Bill No. 1015 - Office of Management and Budget - Senate Action

	EXECUTIVE BUDGET	HOUSE VERSION	SENATE CHANGES	SENATE VERSION
Salaries and wages	\$13,558,925	\$13,512,017	(\$16,224)	\$13,495,793
Operating expenses	11,233,906	11,233,906	107,200	11,341,106
Capital assets	2,644,000	844,000		844,000
Grants	179,000	389,000		389,000
Prairie Public Broadcasting	1,337,138	1,337,138		1,337,138
Statewide equity pool	<u>5,000,000</u>			
Total all funds	\$33,952,969	\$27,316,061	\$90,976	\$27,407,037
Less estimated income	<u>11,683,281</u>	<u>7,374,000</u>	<u>103,868</u>	<u>7,477,868</u>
General fund	\$22,269,688	\$19,942,061	(\$12,892)	\$19,929,169
FTE	130.50	130.50	0.00	130.50

Dept. 110 - Office of Management and Budget - Detail of Senate Changes

	REDUCES RECOMMENDED FUNDING FOR HEALTH INSURANCE ¹	PROVIDES AUTHORITY FOR SERVER HOSTING SERVICES AND HOMELAND SECURITY ²	TOTAL SENATE CHANGES
Salaries and wages	(\$16,224)		(\$16,224)
Operating expenses		\$107,200	107,200
Capital assets			
Grants			
Prairie Public Broadcasting			
Statewide equity pool			
Total all funds	(\$16,224)	\$107,200	\$90,976
Less estimated income	<u>(3,332)</u>	<u>107,200</u>	<u>103,868</u>
General fund	(\$12,892)	\$0	(\$12,892)
FTE	0.00	0.00	0.00

¹ This amendment reduces funding for state employee health insurance premiums from \$559.15 to \$553.95 per month.

² The Senate added \$107,200 of funding from a homeland security grant to risk management for the cost of server hosting services at the Information Technology Department.

The Senate amendments provided for the following:

- Amends North Dakota Century Code (NDCC) Section 54-03-20 providing for a member of the Legislative Assembly to elect to be reimbursed for less than the amount to which the legislator is entitled.
- Amends NDCC Section 54-44.1-06 providing that appropriation bills prepared by the Office of Management and Budget provide the same funding as approved by the most recently adjourned special or regular session of the Legislative Assembly, with amendments presented to reflect the executive recommendation. This amendment also provides for the Office of Management and Budget to provide the Legislative Assembly with estimated budget information for an additional four-year period beyond the two-year period covered by the executive recommendation.
- In addition, the Senate amended NDCC Section 54-44.1-06.1 to provide that the capital construction bill include only projects involving bonding and that all other capital projects be included in draft amendments to the appropriate agency's appropriations bill.
- Repeals Section 9 of 2005 Senate Bill No. 2015 relating to preparation of future composite schedules for teacher salaries.
- Repeals Section 12 of 2005 Senate Bill No. 2015 relating to a Legislative Council study of the Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation.
- Removes the section which would have required the North Dakota Wheat Commission to submit a budget request to the Legislative Assembly.
- Provides for a Legislative Council study of employee salaries for the Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation.
- Limits the transfer from the lands and minerals trust fund to the general fund to \$5 million.
- Allows additional state employee compensation adjustments for salary equity adjustments averaging 1 percent for the second year of the biennium to be paid from existing agency appropriations.

CONSIDERATION OF MESSAGE FROM THE SENATE

REP. BERG MOVED that the House do not concur in the Senate amendments to HB 1015, and that a conference committee be appointed to meet with a like committee from the Senate, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

APPOINTMENT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

THE SPEAKER APPOINTED as a Conference Committee on HB 1015: Reps. Berg, Svedjan, Boucher.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The Speaker has appointed Rep. Gulleon to replace Rep. Aarsvold on the Conference Committee on HB 1013.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: HB 1010, HB 1016, HB 1195, HB 1397.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has adopted the conference committee report, subsequently passed, and the emergency clause carried: HB 1018.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House does not concur in the Senate amendments to HB 1015 and the Speaker has appointed as a conference committee to act with a like committee from the Senate on:

HB 1015: Reps. Berg; Svedjan; Boucher

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: HB 1004, HB 1009, HB 1252.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has adopted the conference committee report, subsequently passed, and the emergency clause carried: HB 1002, HB 1003, HB 1008.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The House has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: SB 2050, SB 2359.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The Speaker has signed: SB 2050, SB 2359.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The Speaker has signed: HB 1314, HB 1478, HB 1496, HB 1526.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: Your signature is respectfully requested on: HCR 3060.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BRADLEY C. FAY, CHIEF CLERK)

MR. PRESIDENT: The Speaker has signed: SB 2204, SB 2217, SB 2270, SB 2274.

DELIVERY OF ENROLLED BILLS AND RESOLUTIONS

The following bills were delivered to the Governor for approval on April 21, 2005: HB 1169, HB 1314, HB 1478, HB 1496, HB 1526.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: HB 1009, HB 1252.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has adopted the conference committee report on: HB 1004.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The President has appointed as a conference committee to act with a like committee from the House on:

HB 1015: Sens. Stenehjem; Holmberg; O'Connell

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has adopted the conference committee report, subsequently passed, and the emergency clause carried: HB 1002, HB 1003, HB 1008.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has adopted the conference committee report, subsequently passed, and the emergency clause carried: SB 2020.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The Senate has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: SB 2011.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: The President has signed: HB 1459.

MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)

MR. SPEAKER: Your signature is respectfully requested on: SB 2050, SB 2359.

MOTION

REP. MONSON MOVED that the absent members be excused, which motion prevailed.

MOTION

REP. MONSON MOVED that the House be on the fifth, thirteenth, fourteenth, and sixteenth orders of business and at the conclusion of those orders, the House stand adjourned until 8:00 a.m., Friday, April 22, 2005, which motion prevailed.

The House stood adjourned pursuant to Representative Monson's motion.

Bradley C. Fay, Chief Clerk